
 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Meeting is subject to the provisions of the Nevada Open Meeting Law – NRS 241.020 

 

Name of Organization: Governor’s Workforce Investment Board (GWIB) 
  

Date and Time of Meeting: Thursday,  October 23, 2014 at 1 p.m. 
  

Place of Meeting: Grant Sawyer State Office Building 
555 E. Washington Street, #4401 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 
 
Note:  Some members of the Board and the public may be attending the meeting, and 
other persons may observe the meeting and provide testimony through a simultaneous 
videoconference conducted at the following location:  
 

Legislative Building 
401 S. Carson Street, #3138 
Carson City, Nevada 89701 

 

If you cannot attend this meeting, you can listen or view it live over the Internet.  The 
address for State of Nevada’s Calendar of Meetings is http://www.leg.state.nv.us.  
Click on the link ‘Calendar of Meetings/View”. 

 
NOTE: Items on this agenda may be taken in a different order than listed.  Two or more agenda items may be combined 

for consideration.  An item may be removed from this agenda or discussion relating to an item on this agenda 
may be delayed at any time. 

I. OPENING REMARKS 
Luther W. Mack, Jr., Chair 
 

II. INTRODUCTION OF NEW MEMBER AND SUBCOMMITTEE MEMBERS 
Luther W. Mack, Jr. 
 

III. ROLL CALL- CONFIRMATION OF QUORUM 
Kristine Nelson, Assistant to Director and State Board Liaison 
 

IV. VERIFICATION OF PUBLIC NOTICE POSTING 
Kristine Nelson 

 
V. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT(S).  

Members of the public are invited for comment(s).  NO action may be taken on a matter during public comments until 
the matter itself has been included on an agenda as an item for possible action, and properly noticed pursuant to NRS 
241.020.  Due to time constraints, the Chair may limit public comments to three (3) minutes/person.  Please clearly 
state and spell your full name. 

BRIAN SANDOVAL  
GOVERNOR  

LUTHER W. MACK, JR. 
CHAIR 

 

STATE OF NEVADA 
GOVERNOR’S WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD  

500 EAST THIRD STREET, #200 
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89713 

T:  (775)684-3891       F: (775)684-3908 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-241.html
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/
http://leg.state.nv.us/App/Calendar/A/
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-241.html%23NRS241Sec020
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-241.html%23NRS241Sec020


VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  GWIB meeting held on July 24, 2014 in Carson City, Nevada.

VII. DISCUSSION, INFORMATIONAL AND POTENTIAL ACTION ITEMS
a. DETR agency report and update

b. DETR Research and Analysis Bureau’s Presentation  - Christopher Robison, Economist  3,DETR

c. GWIB Industry Sector Council Reports and Updates – Earl McDowell, Deputy Administrator-
 Workforce Solutions, DETR 

d. Local Workforce Investment Board’ Reports and Updates
− Nevadaworks – John Thurman, Chief Executive Officer 
− Workforce Connections – Heather DeSart, Deputy Director; and, Ardell Galbreth, Executive 

       Director 

e. DETR Chief Financial Officer’s report and update – Mark Costa, CFO, DETR
− Workforce Investment Act – Analysis of Expenditures 

f. Workforce Investment System Services (WISS) -  Grant Nielson, Chief of Workforce
  Investment System Services, DETR 

POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS: 
− Performance Measures  report and updates 
− Modification of the Nevada Integrated Workforce Plan  
− Modification of State Compliance Policy SECTION 1.12– Selection of Training 

   Service Providers 
− Modification of State Compliance Policy SECTION 3.1–   Allowable Costs 
− Modification of State Compliance Policy SECTION 5.7–  Oversight and  

 Monitoring 

VIII. BOARD COMMENT(S) AND DISCUSSION
Members of the Governor’s Workforce Investment Board may now comment on any matter(s) or topic(s), which is relevant to or within the
authority or jurisdiction of the Board.  NO action may be taken on a matter during public comments until the matter itself has been included on an 
agenda as an item for possible action, and properly noticed pursuant to NRS 241.020.Due to time constraints, the Chair may limit comments to
three (3) minutes.  Please clearly state your full name.

IX. SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT(S).
Members of the public are invited for comment(s).  NO action may be taken on a matter during public comments until the matter
itself has been included on an agenda as an item for possible action, and properly noticed pursuant to NRS 241.020.  Due to time
constraints, the Chair may limit public comments to three (3) minutes/person.  Please clearly state and spell your full name.

X. ADJOURNMENT. 

For 
Possible 
Action 

For 
Possible 
Action 

2 | P a g e

ITEM PULLED

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-241.html%23NRS241Sec020
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-241.html%23NRS241Sec020
kknelson
Highlight

kknelson
Highlight



NOTE: Persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations or assistance at the meeting should 
notify the DETR Director’s Office, in writing at:  555 E. Third Street, Carson City, Nevada 89713; or, 
should call (775) 684-3911; if hearing impaired, dial TTY (800) 326-6868 or Nevada Relay 711; or 
send a fax request to (775)684-3908 as soon as possible and no later than close of business on 
Friday, October 17, 2014. 

 
 
 
Notice of this meeting was posted on or before 9 a.m. on the third day prior to the meeting at the following 
locations:  DETR, 2800 E. St. Louis, Las Vegas, NV; DETR, 500 East Third St., Carson City, NV; DETR, 1325 
Corporate Blvd., Reno NV; NEVADA JOBCONNECT, 3405 S. Maryland Parkway, Las Vegas, NV; NEVADA 
JOBCONNECT, 119 Water St., Henderson, NV; NEVADA JOBCONNECT, 2827 N. Las Vegas Blvd., North 
Las Vegas, NV; NEVADA JOBCONNECT, 1929 N. Carson St., Carson City, NV; NEVADA JOBCONNECT, 
172 Sixth St., Elko, NV; NEVADA JOBCONNECT, 480 Campton St., Ely, NV; NEVADA JOBCONNECT, 121 
Industrial Way, Fallon, NV; NEVADA JOBCONNECT, 475 W. Haskell, #1, Winnemucca, NV; NEVADA 
JOBCONNECT, 4001 S. Virginia St., Suite G, Reno, NV; NEVADA JOBCONNECT, 1675 E. Prater Way, Suite 
103, Sparks, NV; GRANT SAWYER OFFICE BUILDING, 555 E. Washington Ave., Las Vegas, NV; 
LEGISLATIVE BUILDING, 401 S. Carson St., Carson City, NV; NEVADAWORKS 6490 S. McCarran Blvd., 
Building A, Unit 1., Reno, NV; WORKFORCE CONNECTIONS, 6330 West Charleston Blvd. #150, Las Vegas, 
NV.   
 
Notice of this meeting was posted on the Internet at:  DETR’s Public Meetings website - www.nvdetr.org, 
http://nvdetr.org/publicmeetings.htm; and Nevada’s Public Notice website at https://notice.nv.gov/, as required by 
NRS 232.2175.    
 
 
 
Supporting public material provided to Committee members for this meeting is posted on DETR’s Web 
site at www.nvdetr.org, http://nvdetr.org/publicmeetings.htm, and may be requested from the Director’s 
Office at 500 E. Third Street, Carson City, Nevada 89713; or call (775)684-3911; or fax (775)684-3908 
on or before the close of business on Friday, October 17, 2014. 

 
GOVERNOR’S WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD MEMBERS 

 

Luther W. Mack, Jr., Chair 
 
 
Debbie Banko 
Councilman Bob Beers 
Jo Cato 
Tim Crowley 
Jolene Dalluhn 
Councilman Oscar Delgado 
Pam Egan 
Mary Beth Hartleb 
Steve Hill 
Collie Hutter 
Assembly Speaker Marilyn Kirkpatrick 
Senator Ruben Kihuen 
Horacio Lopez 
Senator Mark Manendo 
Dr. Michael McMahon 
 
 

Dr. Aurangzeb Nagy 
Cass Palmer 
Dennis Perea 
Michael Raponi 
Maite Salazar 
Patrick Sheets 
Don Soderberg 
Sarah Sommers 
Donald Snyder 
Assemblyman Tyrone Thompson 
Commissioner Lawrence Weekly 
Kris Wells 
Mike Willden 
Frank Woodbeck 
Bradley Woodring 

3 | P a g e  
 

http://www.nvdetr.org/
http://nvdetr.org/publicmeetings.htm
https://notice.nv.gov/
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-232.html%23NRS232Sec2175
http://www.nvdetr.org/
http://nvdetr.org/publicmeetings.htm


 
 
 

GOVERNOR’S WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD MEETING 
AKA State Workforce Investment Board (SWIB) 

Thursday, July 24, 2014 – 1:00 p.m. 
Legislative Building 

401 S. Carson Street Room 2135 
Carson City, Nevada 

 
Alternate Location:  Some members of the Board may be attending the meeting and other persons may observe the meeting and 

provide testimony through a simultaneous videoconference conducted at the following location: 
 

Grant Sawyer Building 
555 E. Washington Street Room 4401 

Las Vegas, Nevada 
 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 
 

Present: Bob Beers, Jo Cato, Tim Crowley, Jolene Dalluhn, Collie Hutter, Marilyn Kirkpatrick, Horatio Lopez, Luther Mack, 
Jr., Mark Manendo, Dr. Mike McMahon, Aurangzeb Nagy, Dennis Perea, Michael Raponi, Patrick Sheets, Donald 
Snyder, Sarah Sommers, Tyrone Thompson, Kris Wells, Frank Woodbeck. 

 
Absent: Debbie Banko, Oscar Delgado, Pam Eagan, Mary Beth Hartleb, Steve Hill, Ruben Kihuen, Aurangzeb Nagy, Cass 

Palmer, Maite Salazar, Lawrence Weekly, Mike Willden, Bradley Woodring. 
 
Also present: Ray Bacon, Mark Costa, Heather DeSart, Ardell Galbreth, Earl McDowell, Grant Nielson, Dana Pray, Tessa 

Rognier, John Thurman. 
 
 
I. OPEN REMARKS – Luther W. Mack, Jr., Chair 
 
II. ROLL CALL - CONFIRMATION OF QUORUM - Kristine Nelson, Assistant to the Director, Department of 

Employment, Training and Rehabilitation (DETR) 
 
 
III. VERIFICATION OF PUBLIC NOTICE POSTING - Kristine Nelson 
 
IV. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT(S). 

Members of the public are invited for comment(s).  However, No action may be taken on a matter during public comments 
until the matter itself has been included on an agenda as an item for possible action, and properly noticed pursuant to NRS 
241.020.  Due to time constraints, the Chair may limit public comments to three (3) minutes/person.  Please clearly 
state and spell your full name. 

 
There were no public comments. 

 
V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Possible Action.  GWIB meeting held on April 17, 2014 in Las Vegas, Nevada. 
 

Chair Mack asked for comments for the April 217, 2014 meeting minutes.  Chairman Mack noted that on the minutes Board 
Member Patrick Sheets was noted both present and absent and stated that Mr. Sheets was indeed present and the correction 
has been made on the minutes to reflect that. 

 
It was moved and seconded to approve the correction for the April 17, 2014 Minutes.  Motion Carried 

GWIB July 24, 2014 Page 1 of 11 
 



 
 
No further comments were made on the agenda item. 

 
Chair Mack asked for a motion to approve the April 17, 2014 Minutes. 

 
It was moved and seconded to approve the April 17, 2014 Minutes.  Motion Carried 

 
 
VI. DISCUSSION, INFORMATIONAL AND POTENTIAL ACTION ITEMS 
 

a. DETR Director’s report and update - Dennis A. Perea, interim Director, DETR 
i. Dislocated Worker funding allocation methodology 
ii. Proposed GWIB 2015 meeting schedule 
iii. Strategic Planning and Legislative Affairs Subcommittee Survey results 
iv. Workforce Innovation and Opportunities Act (WIOA) 

 
Chair Mack introduced Dennis Perea and asked him to give his Director's Report, Updates, and Possible Action 
Items. 

 
Dennis Perea, Interim Director, DETR introduced himself and stated there had been discussions between the 
northern board and the southern board on this and believes they have an agreement in principle to bring that before 
the board for its consideration.  He stated that there were two options for the 2015 meeting:  1. Keep the current 
format at four meetings a year for two-hour meetings or, 2. Go to four-hour meetings twice a year. 

 
Chair Mack asked for discussion or comments on the agenda items. 
 
Marilyn Kirkpatrick stated that it is difficult currently to achieve quorum and as things changed in the department 
the four meetings for two hours each is best.  She stated that limiting the schedule to only two meetings would be 
much harder. 
 
Tyrone Thompson stated that, looking at strategic planning, the board needed to meet as many times as possible and 
also supported the quarterly meeting schedule. 
 
Don Snyder agreed that four meetings per year made sense but stated it would be helpful if the meetings were 
contained to two hours. 
 
Chair Mack asked for any further comments.  There were none.  He thanked everyone for their input and stated the 
commission will continue to meet four times a year with two-hour meetings. 
 
Mr. Perea stated the Strategic Planning and Legislative Affairs Subcommittee Survey results were in and 
recommendations for the Legislative Affairs subcommittee were Oscar Delgado, Steve Hill, Ruben Kihuen, Marilyn 
Kirkpatrick, Horacio Lopez, and Frank Woodbeck.  He stated the recommendations for the Strategic Planning 
Subcommittee were Jo Cato, Tim Crowley, Pam Egan, Cass Palmer, Dennis Perea, Tyrone Thompson, and 
Lawrence Weekley.  He asked for any comments or questions. 
 
Ms. Kirkpatrick stated they were having a hard time in Las Vegas hearing Mr. Perea and asked that it be reiterated.  
Mr. Perea restated recommendations for both subcommittees. 
 
Mr. Perea requested input from the board on voting by proxy in meetings as a change to the bylaws.  He stated the 
current bylaws do not allow for such. 
 
Chair Mack asked for any questions or comments. 
 
Ms. Kirkpatrick opined that voting by proxy might limit attendance at meetings as well as activity and might also 
negatively affect quorum. 
 
Chair Mack asked for further comments. 
 

GWIB July 24, 2014 Page 2 of 11 
 



 
Mr. Snyder agreed with Ms. Kirkpatrick and stated there were several nods around the room. 
 
Mr. Perea stated the idea of proxy votes came out of the idea of achieving a quorum.  He said the Workforce 
Investment Act (WIA) is being replaced by the Workforce Innovation and Opportunities Act (WIOA) and that the 
WIOA allows for a smaller board which will make a quorum easier. 
 
Chair Mack thanked everyone for their comments and stated the board will leave proxy voting as is. 
 
Mr. Perea requested input on the 25 percent cap for the first year, 30 percent cap the second year of dollars for On-
the-Job Training (OJT).  He stated that the question was should OJTs be allowed under that 30 percent to make it 
easier to spend down the money. 
 
Frank Woodbeck stated that the certificate conducted with whatever on the job training would be important.  He 
stated the outcome of an OJT program should be more than only employment, such as a certificate of achievement 
to some next level of training. 
 
Chair Mack asked for further comments. 
 
Bob Beers clarified the point of the OJT suggestion was the comparative completion of the program measured by 
achievement of employment. 
 
Chair Mack asked for further comments.  There were none. 

 
b. DETR Chief Economist’s Presentation - Tessa Rognier, Economist, DETR 
 

Chair Mack introduced Tessa Rognier for her presentation. 
 

Tessa Rognier stated her name and title.  She stated her department is performing a labor market overview on the 
current state of the Nevada economy.  She reviewed the current unemployment rate of the state and compared it to 
the national rate and pointed out the gap between the two is narrowing, although Nevada's rate is the second highest 
in the nation.  She discussed state level employment, with job levels up 46,200 relative to a year ago and seasonal 
employment rates and trends.  She stated the year-over-year job gains remain near four percent, outpacing the 
national average.  She went over Nevada's job growth and job growth ranking over the past few years and compared 
it to national statistics.  She stated while all sectors had gains hospitality lead with over 11,000 additional jobs this 
year and drop in mining jobs.  She discussed several factors contributing to the job gains and which job sectors had 
the most gains.  She concluded her presentation and asked for any questions. 
 
Mr. Woodbeck asked if they could compare categories in 2014 versus 2007 of the number of jobs in the category of 
Leisure and Entertainment as well as in construction for the next quarterly report. 
 
Chair Mack asked for any further questions or comments. 
 
Mr. Thompson asked for the presentation to be sent to members electronically.  Chair Mack said it would be. 
 
Mr. Beers asked for the electronic copy to be available before the meeting and Chair Mack stated they would work 
on it. 
 
Marilyn Kirkpatrick asked the difference between New Mexico's and South [sic] Dakota's driving factors that helped 
drive North Dakota's huge increase in their workforce. 
 
Ms. Rognier stated that in North Dakota there was a very large increase due to the fracking that is done in the oil and 
natural gas industry. 
 
Ms. Kirkpatrick asked whether there were specific industries, long-term/short-term, and if in New Mexico they lost 
industries which caused them to not see any growth. 
 

GWIB July 24, 2014 Page 3 of 11 
 



 
Ms. Rognier stated she was not familiar with the specifics of New Mexico but she has been following the oil 
industry expansion in North Dakota because Nevada was on the verge of the same expansion and that those have to 
do with the natural gas industry and fracking. 
 
Chair Mack asked for any further questions.  There were none. 
 

c. GWIB Industry Sector Council Reports, Updates and Introductions – Earl McDowell, Deputy Administrator 
– Workforce Solutions, DETR 

i. GWIB Industry Sector Council webpage overview 
ii. Pilot projects for each industry sector council 
iii. Career pathways 
iv. In-Demand occupations 
v. Health Care and Medical Services Industry Sector – Dr. Marcia Turner, Chair 
vi. Mining and Materials Industry Sector – Dana Pray, Chair 

 
Chair Mack introduced Earl McDowell, Deputy Administrator from DETR's Workforce Solution Unit. 
 
Earl McDowell stated his name and position for the record.  He gave an overview of the DETR's website as it 
pertains to GWIB and the Sector Council.  He stated that anything anyone wanted to know about the Sector 
Councils are included on the website and invited anyone who wanted to volunteer to help, to do so.  He asked for 
questions. 
 
Mr. Thompson asked if there were any type of outreach that DETR is using statewide to raise awareness to the 
public regarding the website.  He stated that he was interested in the fact that there was a link for grant information. 
 
Mr. McDowell stated that they were constructing a marketing plan and materials, including brochures.  He stated in 
reference to the grant information question they have a grant writer on their review that looks at grants for all nine 
sectors to pursue. 
 
Ms. Kirkpatrick asked for clarification for the pilot program on the Aerospace Sector Council's website and asked 
how to alert her constituents that might benefit from it to the program.  She also asked if there would be any type of 
measurement of hiring within the sector councils. 
 
Mr. McDowell answered that the pilot programs are being advertised through appropriate venues for each with 
notifications sent to the departments that are doing them as well as on the website and that the programs will also be 
advertised through their upcoming marketing plan. 
 
Ms. Kirkpatrick asked if there were any accountability for the providers' customer service through the pilot 
programs.  She stated that usually only a small percentage of the public knew about these programs. 
 
Mr. Perea responded.  He said they would be happy to report on that once they do a contract closeout.  He stated that 
where they recruited participants depended upon the program, but that Job Connect is supplying some of them. 
 
Ms. Kirkpatrick stated she wants a document with which to guide her constituents to the correct place to sign up. 
 
Mr. McDowell reiterated his department was in the process of finishing contracts and will later implement a 
marketing plan. 
 
Jo Cato commented the marketing plan would be key and needed to reach the masses. 
 
Mr. Woodbeck suggested their traditional network of service providers would be the best initial step to sharing the 
information and could connect the public with above mentioned training programs. 
 
Mr. Perea stated that the department would prepare a white paper providing descriptions, training providers, and 
where people can go for the pilot programs. 
 
Ms. Kirkpatrick suggested the board members would be good marketers. 
 

GWIB July 24, 2014 Page 4 of 11 
 



 
Mr. McDowell spoke on Career Pathways, which was approved by the Nevada school board.  He invited members 
to look at the brochure provided in their packets.  He stated that the Industry Sector Council reports are included as 
well.  He stated that the agenda would be slightly modified to have Dana Pray of the Mining and Materials Industry 
Sector and that he would speak for Marcia Turner of the Health Care and Medical Industry Sector as she was absent. 
 
Dana Pray stated her name and title for the record.  She stated that the In-Demand position in the skilled trade 
sector would be maintenance positions.  She reported on the Mining and Materials Sector.  They added 16 people to 
be trained each year in instrumentation.  This year they created five new subcommittees.  She stated the first one 
would create a program to help returning veterans, as they are usually skilled workers in the maintenance area, 
integrate into the in-demand areas in the workforce.  She stated the second one would shore up all the Career 
Pathways and consolidate them into something they could market well.  The third one is welding, in which she 
stated there seemed to be a bottleneck in, in northern Nevada, so that there would be training in welding.  She stated 
the fourth subcommittee was an outreach to universities, colleges, and high schools so that people in the in-demand 
areas are informed about the mining industry.  She stated they will be working on marketing this year. 
 
Chair Mack asked for comments or questions. 
 
Tim Crowley thanked Frank Woodbeck in regard to the internships in the outreach program for the mining and 
materials industry, especially in the southern area of Nevada.  He thanked Dana Pray for this as well. 
 
Chair Mack asked for any further comments. 
 
Mr. Thompson had a question regarding the composition of the council members in regards.  He asked how to 
attract more participants in southern Nevada. 
 
Horacio Lopez referred to a recent study by the Kenny C. Guinn Center concerning the status of the Latino 
community in the mountain-west states.  He stated the study concluded that Nevadan Latinos fare worse than 
Latinos in any other state in the region, even though they comprise 27 percent of the population in Nevada.  He 
encouraged members of the board to read the study and formulate a task force to address the situation. 
 
Chair Mack asked Mr. McDowell for any comments. 
 
Mr. McDowell called attention to a report on the April 8, 2014 Nevada Health Care and Workforce Summit event.  
The event addressed current and future health care workforce needs.  He also called attention to their proposed pilot 
program. 
 
Mr. Snyder commented there was a new report from Brookings relevant to the health care sector called "Part of the 
Solution:  Pre-Baccalaureate Health Care Workers in a Time of Health System Change." 
 
Chair Mack asked for any comments from the board. 
 
Mike Raponi stated the type of work from the Industry Sector Council brought a positive opportunity to career and 
technical education to assess its strengths and weaknesses.  He stated the Department of Education would be 
working more closely with the Industry Sector Councils in the future to improve them, and that the Career Pathways 
was an important first step.  He stated that regarding the internships, school districts engaged students in internships 
and in 2013 legislation was passed approving the programs and regulating them. 
 
Chair Mack asked for further comments.  There were none. 

 
d. Local Workforce Investment Board’ Reports and Updates 

i. Workforce Connections – Ardell Galbreth, Executive Director 
ii. Nevadaworks – John Thurman, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Chair Mack introduced Ardell Galbreth of the Southern Local Workforce Investment Board. 
 
Ardell Galbreth stated his name and address.  He introduced Heather DeSart, Deputy Executive Director, 
Workforce Connections. 
 

GWIB July 24, 2014 Page 5 of 11 
 



 
Heather DeSart reported regarding the department's youth services, including graduate advocates in 15 Las Vegas 
schools.  She stated that the department's service providers were offering pilot programs as well. 
 
Mr. Galbreth reported that Workforce Connections received a grant from AARP of $100,000 for the 50+ age 
workers.  He referred to the meeting packet regarding the National Emergency Grant (NEG).  He stated this grant 
has been challenging to report and deliver due to its restrictiveness with regards to serving the department's clients.  
He stated that the department's Strategic Plan has been sent to the DETR board for review.  He stated a list was 
building of contacts between Workforce Connections and employers throughout the areas; employers are signing up 
to utilize the department as their primary employment service.  He stated his encouragement of a revision to policy 
1.12 Agenda Item VI.f.i., indicating that the travel cost of monitoring in a foreign country would borne by local 
boards to state that the travel cost be borne by the trade providers instead.  He concluded his report and asked for 
any comments or questions. 
 
Mr. Woodbeck had a question regarding training, the second bullet point under One Stop Career Center, to place 
800 individuals into training and the average cost per participant of $2,736.  He stated in future reports he would like 
to know what the training was and who the training providers were for individuals, at least the predominant number 
of individuals who were trained and where that training came from. 
 
Chair Mack asked for any further questions or comments. 
 
Mr. Thompson referred to the second bullet point under "Business Engagement" in the packet and stated that a small 
group had an overview from the RTC on the fuel revenue index and projects and were really appreciative for the 
collaboration with Workforce Connections.  He stated the RTC mentioned there were close to 2,000 jobs already of 
the projected 90,000.  He asked if Workforce Connections will be keeping those statistics and if so, could the board 
be updated at future board meetings with even more specific data. 
 
Ms. DeSart answered that Workforce Connections would do so. 
 
Mr. Galbreth stated they could also put board members on the list for distribution of their monthly packet. 
 
Ms. Kirkpatrick stated it would be helpful to have one sheet of information for possible participants guiding them 
through the process.  She stated it would prevent multiple trips for the participant, or drop out, if they had everything 
they needed together for the application for the service. 
 
Mr. Galbreth stated he had heard of problems and his department would respond to her request. 
 
Mr. Thompson gave an example of the power of social media, citing a post on Facebook showing a picture of a 
board that talked about the fuel index projects and the jobs that received many in-box messages of people requesting 
more information.  He asked for information in an easy-to-transfer to social media format to outreach that way as 
well. 
 
Chair Mack introduced John Thurman, Chief Executive Officer, Northern Local Workforce Investment Board, 
Nevada Works. 
 
John Thurman gave his report.  He stated that his department has a staff member that acts as an ex-officio member 
with each of the sectors so that any sector recommendations can be sent to the service providers who receive funding 
through the Workforce Investment Act as soon as possible.  He reviewed the Statewide Automation Workforce 
System was a little behind, but as the new Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act was just signed which 
probably had vendors working to comply, so the department's delay was not obstructing the implementation of the 
program.  He stated the Department of Labor has been visiting the State of Nevada, including Workforce 
Connections and their service providers to determine the effectiveness and compliance with the new act and service 
delivery.  He stated they would have more information on that in the future.  He stated the department's new year 
just started with ongoing training at Nevada Works and the new service provider locations on data collection, data 
entry, compliance with contracts, etc., to the Department of Labor.  He thanked the WISS, the Workforce 
Information Support Services for collaboration in developing new training tools.  He asked for any questions. 
 
Chair Mack asked for any questions for Mr. Thurman. 
 

GWIB July 24, 2014 Page 6 of 11 
 



 
Mr. Thompson asked a question regarding paragraph four in the packet that speaks about Workforce Innovation and 
Opportunity Act.  He stated that the new act provided for 75 percent of the youth funding to be spent on out-of-
school youth programs.  He asked who the lead was on that and if it was done on the local level or the state level or 
a joint partnership and agreement on how that 75 percent is spent. 
 
Mr. Thurman stated that historically it was split between in-school and out-of-school youth on a 70/30 basis.  He 
stated that the new shift of 75 percent going to out-of-school programs will create a shift, causing many very 
successful programs for in-school students to disappear as the focus is shifted.  He stated they will be looking for 
guidance from the local and state boards on which out-of-school youth services they want to target. 
 
Mr. Thompson stated that as a state Nevada needed to work with partnerships to keep the programs alive, and find 
more creative ways to do that since funding is now cut. 
 
Mr. Thurman stated in many cases in-school programs would not disappear but they will lack the former funding.  
He stated many of those programs also have funding from other sources. 
 
Chair Mack asked for any further comments or questions. 
 
Ms. Kirkpatrick stated that strategic planning does come in to get the employers to be part of the long-term process.  
She stated she understands that work experience is important but that employers have no problem signing up as 
providers for funding so that perhaps the strategic planning could be a criteria for those employers to keep the 
programs going.  She stated she was glad for the shift since so many 17 to 21-year-olds need that help.  She stated 
that for the existing youth that need something, to the employers the department needs to state their need for aid. 
 
Mr. Woodbeck stated Mr. Thurman and Mr. Galbreth in the past tried to figure out how best to utilize the dollars 
available to them and that this shift might be a welcome one.  He stated he would like to see the board explore ways 
in which out-of-school youth can be served particularly in terms of remedial training and pathways to post-
secondary education and how to efficiently be able to utilize those new funds for the 18 to 21-year-olds having a 
difficult time in finding that pathway.  He stated they could come up with new programs that would work. 
 
Chair Mack asked for any further comments. 
 
Mr. Perea stated that to make sure that the good work from the now unfunded in-school program continues they 
needed to figure out how to blend funding in different options. 
 
Chair Mack asked for any further comments.  There were none. 
 

e. DETR Staff Reports and Updates:  Workforce Investment Act – Analysis of Expenditures Mark Costa, CFO, 
DETR 

 
Chair Mack introduced Mark Costa, Chief Financial Officer, DETR. 

 
Mark Costa stated there were four program years of 2012, 2013, 2014 and that 2014 was new on the packet's 
spreadsheet while 2012 was nearly finished. 
 
Chair Mack asked for comments or questions from the board. 
 
Mr. Perea stated that in the passage of the WIA Nevada will receive a slightly larger amount nationally, which will 
help mitigate some of the downward trend as the employment rate continues to improve. 
 
Chair Mack asked for any further comments.  There were none. 

 
f. Workforce Investment Act – Performance Measures and Revision to WIA State Compliance Policies – Grant 

Nielson, Chief of Workforce Investment Systems Services, DETR 
i. SECTION 1.12 – Selection of Training Service Providers 
ii. SECTION 1.2 – Local Workforce Investment Board Plan 
iii. SECTION 3.1 – Allowable Costs 
iv. SECTION 5.7 – Oversight and Monitoring 

GWIB July 24, 2014 Page 7 of 11 
 



 
 

Chair Mack introduced Grant Nielson, Chief of Workforce Investment System Services, DETR. 
 
Grant Nielson referred to the packet for the meeting.  He stated that for each of the funding streams adults, 
dislocated workers, and youth, Nevada have either exceeded or are within the required 80 percent of all of the 
performance measures for the quarter measured.  He noted that as more information comes out about the WIOA law, 
city compliance policies will be changing on a regular basis.  He stated that they still have maintenance on the 
current policies and many of the changes in the policies are either formatting changes and/or changes in 
nomenclature, for example, from "state" to "governor."  He referred to the packet's page 6 of 7 on Item V C, where it 
states that for foreign monitoring costs, the Workforce Investment Board (WIB) will pay with non-WIA funds for 
travel for both Local Workforce Investment Board (LWIB) and state monitors.  He stated the reason for the change 
is the need to make it clear that foreign travel is not allowed with these funds.  He stated they need a way to monitor 
those funds effectively and ensure that they are providing the services as required by the WIA. 
 
Mr. Beers asked if any consideration was given to putting that to the LWIB and if not, why that was not pursued. 
 
Mr. Nielson stated that the LWIB can make policy in selection of the providers, requiring that on their level and then 
have those funds flow up.  He stated that the LWIB are the ones that nominate these providers and so if there is a 
program that requires foreign training his department at DETR believes that responsibility should lay with the LWIB 
to make arrangements however they wish. 
 
Mr. Beers thanked him.  He then asked if it was considered to make the responsibility of the provider. 
 
Mr. Nielson said no. 
 
Mr. Perea stated the policy was discussed with Nevada State College.  He stated that the burden cascades downhill.  
The state board puts the burden on the local board and the local boards need to make that a part of their contracts 
with those providers to pay for foreign training travel cost.  He stated it could be done either way but the effect 
would be the same. 
 
Mr. Beers asked if there would be objection to modifying the language to place the burden on the provider. 
 
Mr. Nielson stated discussion would be needed since it hasn't been considered to this point.  He stated he would 
have to review federal policy and requirements but would consider it. 
 
Mr. Woodbeck asked if it was the provider who was responsible for cost, what the repercussions would be for the 
requirement of collecting from that provider. 
 
Mr. Nielson stated that because the state does not have a contract with the provider they believe it would be more 
appropriate for the LWIB.  He said it applied beyond the LWIB training provider list and perhaps that’s a change 
they could make to the application.  He stated that this had not previously been considered as an issue and they had 
only tried to address the issues of the policy that they found. 
 
Mr. Woodbeck asked if it would be possible to be negotiated in the contract between the WIB and the provider, to 
hold the provider harmless, and give Workforce Connections the legal liability of going after the provider. 
 
Mr. Nielson stated that he believes that this is the effect of the policy as it currently stands.  That the LWIBs at their 
discretion able to make policy and affect their contracts in a way that that liability flows up. 
 
Mr. Perea provided some background on the issue.  He stated that the Workforce Investment Act does not allow for 
international travel.  He stated the southern board had a nursing immersion program in Guadalajara, Mexico and 
DETR disallowed the entire cost, including the training and the travel, because it was their belief that by excluding 
international travel it in turn excluded the training.  He stated that it went to a hearing and DETR lost; the hearing 
officer said that DETR could not interpret that since it didn't specifically exclude the training that DETR could 
disallow that.  He stated that the concern is DETR has oversight and doesn't have the means to actually physically 
look at the training providers if they are outside the country.  He stated they wanted to establish a policy whereby 
they could fulfill the obligation to monitor the programs without having to pay for it. 
 

GWIB July 24, 2014 Page 8 of 11 
 



 
Chair Mack asked Mr. Beers if he had another comment, or if anyone else did. 
 
Mr. Beers stated it might be premature to adopt the change today, given the different perspectives.  He stated he 
thinks the board should delay action on this for another couples of months to a new meeting. 
 
Mr. Nielson stated that DETR was not opposed to that. 
 
Chair Mack stated the board still had to vote on the issue. 
 
Mr. Raponi asked for information on the breadth and depth of the foreign service providers since the board may be 
asking to vote.  He wanted to know the track record, number of foreign service providers, etc. 
 
Mr. Nielson stated that there was only one which had one cohort and that he did not have exact numbers on that 
cohort.  He stated that the number of people that enter into that training was in the teens or less. 
 
Chair Mack asked for any other comments. 
 
Mr. Raponi asked if the policy was designed to be a preventative measure for situations that really don’t exist but 
may exist. 
 
Mr. Nielson stated that was correct. 
 
Chair Mack asked for any further comments.  There were none.  He then asked Mr. Nielson if he had any further 
comments. 
 
Mr. Nielson continued with the agenda.  He stated the changes in the policy 1.2 are primarily changes to align 
changes in the federal policy or citation issues within the policy.  He stated the policy had not been updated since 
2005 and there were some different formatting and citation changes needed.  Mr. Nielson spoke about Section 3.1, I 
A 5, foreign travel as a disallowed cost.  He stated it is again clarified in that policy. 
 
Mr. Thompson stated that the title of Section 3.1 is "Allowable Cost" but that I. A, 1 through 9 are unallowable costs.  
He asked if that could be reformatted to clarify it. 
 
Mr. Nielson stated future versions would be changed and the policies would be clarified. 
 
Ms. Kirkpatrick suggested a summary of the reasoning behind changes be included in the meeting packets. 
 
Mr. Nielson said they would take that under instruction for future meetings. 
 
Chair Mack asked if he had this as a motion to approve. 
 
Mr. Nielson said that was correct.  He then continued to the next section, Section 5.7, an addition again relating to 
the foreign travel issue. 
 
Chair Mack asked if there were any other comments. 
 
Mr. Beers stated he was uncomfortable with the wording and suggested a brief written report from DETR regarding 
the foreign travel matter.  He stated he was not clear on what happened.  He asked if it would be possible to delay it 
for one meeting and receive the written description before next meeting. 
 
Chair Mack stated they need the consensus of the board as a motion so they'll have to get the consensus of the board 
to bring it back. 
 
Mr. Beers stated he had not heard a motion made yet. 
 
Ms. Kirkpatrick asked about having a discussion. 
 
Chair Mack called for a motion to approve the revision as it stands.  He asked for any discussion. 

GWIB July 24, 2014 Page 9 of 11 
 



 
 
Ms. Kirkpatrick stated her vote was no because it would revert back to the local board and they would not know 
exactly what the committee did.  She stated if she can't have a dialogue with her local workforce board of what 
they're supposed to be implementing, which made her nervous.  She again suggested having information ahead of 
time explaining the reasoning behind the changes.  She asked what the detriment was to not voting on this today if 
there were going to be more changes in the next 90 days.  
 
Mr. Beers stated he did not hear who made the motion and asked the maker of the motion what the implication 
would be of putting the vote off for three months. 
 
Chair Mack stated if there is no motion being made they could pull it.  He stated the commission will put the item. 
 
Ms. Kirkpatrick stated she wanted to clarify that she heard Chair Mack call for a motion and then call for discussion.  
She stated that someone needed to take the motion back because the members were in discussion. 
 
Chair Mack stated there was no motion being made. 
 
Mr. Woodbeck moved that the compliance policy be tabled for the October meeting and that the requested 
explanations be provided in advance of that meeting with the packet that goes out. 
 

It was moved and seconded to approve the tabling of this agenda item until the October 2014 meeting with 
information regarding the item provided beforehand. 

 
VII. BOARD COMMENT(S) AND DISCUSSION 
 

Chair Mack invited members of the Governor’s Workforce Investment Board to make comments or discussion.  He noted 
No action may be taken on a matter during public comments until the matter itself has been included on an agenda as an item 
for possible action, and properly noticed. 

 
Mr. Lopez indicated that with the new industry of medicinal marijuana DETR should start getting ready for new employees, 
new trainees, etc. 
 
Mr. Raponi remarked on the previous Agenda Item, asking for clarification.  He stated one part of the policy addresses the 
monitoring responsibilities to the LWIB and then another one to the city WIB. 
 
Mr. Perea stated one policy leaves liability not with the state or the local board, which would mean it would transfer down 
automatically.  He stated the board needed to make sure those two join. 
 
Chair Mack asked for any other board comments.  There were none. 

 
VIII. SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT(S). 
 

Chair Mack invited members of the public for final comments.  He reiterated no action may be taken on any matters of 
public comments until the matter itself has been included on the agenda as an item for possible action. 

 
Ray Bacon stated he was with the Nevada Manufacturers Association.  He stated the pilot project that the Manufacturing 
Sector has embarked upon is to expand the use of the national certificate to go down through the largest companies and sort 
the existing DETR database which will get down to the companies with over 40 employees.  He said they were down to 220 
– 230 companies in that category but in reaching out to those companies they will attempt to get roughly 25 percent of the 
manufacturing workforce touched by that effort.  He stated that the NCRC takes a look at the people that are in the job hunt 
sequence and monitors their capabilities to learn the skills to start closing the skills gap.  He stated there is a skills gap in 
industry sectors, including manufacturing.  He stated the association felt they could work with the 220 companies and would 
exclude those that are not hiring.  He stated they would wind up with national corporations and the local operation would not 
have the decision making authority to change the HR policy.  He stated they also needed some positive input, citing two high 
schools with a 98 percent graduate rate. 
 
Chair Mack asked for any further public comments.  There were none. 

 

GWIB July 24, 2014 Page 10 of 11 
 



 
IX. ADJOURNMENT. 
 

Chair Mack stated the board previously discussed holding two meetings per year where he will be presiding from Carson 
City and two meetings per year where he will reside from Las Vegas.  He stated he will be in Las Vegas for the next board 
meeting scheduled for October 16, 2014 at 9:00a.m.  He stated he appreciated the board and public's presence at today's 
meeting. 
 
Chair Mack adjourned the meeting at 2:50p.m. and thanked everyone present. 

 
 

GWIB July 24, 2014 Page 11 of 11 
 



 

    For more information 

CLICK    

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Resources for Nevada Employers 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Career Enhancement Program (CEP) 
Serves Nevada employers through building a stronger, more skilled workforce by placing 
unemployed Nevadans into training and retraining programs. 
 

Silver State Works 
Statewide initiative designed to create opportunities for employers to help strengthen 
Nevada’s economy while receiving incentives to hire pre-screened, qualified workers. 

 Employer-based training 
 Employer incentive job program 
 Incentive-based employment 

Online Employer Resource Tools 
 State Information Data Exchange System (SIDES) – Helps employers respond to unemployment 

insurance requests quickly, easily and accurately.  Decreases employer costs through the reduction 
of Unemployment Insurance (UI) appeals, mail processing and follow-up calls.  Electronic 
transmission of data reduces mail time and paperwork, and decreases UI taxes through accurate, 
timely exchange of information. 

 Online Job Order Posting for employers 

Work Opportunity Tax Credit (WOTC) 
Rewards employers who contribute to the well-being of Nevada’s workforce by hiring 
individuals who may have a difficult time locating employment.   

Nevada JobConnect Career Centers 
Provide business services and resources to Nevada employers.   

 Connects job seekers with Nevada employers 
 Current labor market data 
 Online job posting 
 Conference facilities for applicant interviews 

Nevada JobConnect Office Locations 
 

  

http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://nvdetr.org/ESD%20Pages/Employer%20Services.htm
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nvdetr.org/ESD%20Pages/cep%20for%20jobseekers.htm
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.silverstateworks.com/
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://nvdetr.org/ESD%20Pages/SIDES.htm
http://nvdetr.org/ESD%20Pages/Post%20job%20orders.htm
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://nvdetr.org/ESD%20Pages/wotc.htm
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/


 

    For more information 

CLICK    

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Resources for Nevada Job Seekers 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Veteran Services 
 

Online Employment Resources 
 

 Nevada’s Job Bank 
 Nevada U.S. Jobs  
 Nevada Career Information System (NCIS) 

 
Nevada JobConnect Career Centers 
Statewide network that connects businesses with job seekers via career centers that provide businesses and 
job seekers personalized attention and services. 
 

Rehabilitation Services 
 Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation – State/federally funded program designed to assist people with 

disabilities become employed, and to assist those already employed through training, counseling 
and other support methods. 

 Business Enterprises of Nevada (BEN) – Services for the blind and visually impaired that includes 
training and on-the-job experience in managing and operating snack bars, cafeterias, vending 
machine routes, and other businesses located in public buildings. 

 Ticket to Work – Assistance for SSI or SSDI recipients to seek and obtain employment. 
 

 Resume and cover letter assistance 
 Phones, email, facsimile, printer, and computer access to 

search and apply for jobs 
 Business directory of local employers  
 On-site training, coursework and off-site professional 

development opportunities 
 Aptitude and skills proficiency testing 

 Individualized reemployment plans 
 Self-guided employment searches 
 Referrals to available job openings 
 Job development and placement assistance 
 Labor Market information 
 Interviewing skills workshops 
 Job-related expenses, e.g. certifications, work 

permits, uniforms, small tools 

Nevada JobConnect Office Locations 
 

 Vow to Hire Heroes Act 
 Job search workshops 
 Assessment and Guidance Services 
 

 Classroom and on-the-job training and 
retraining programs 

 Federal Contractor Program 
 

Local Workforce Investment Boards:  Nevadaworks (north) and Workforce Connections (south) 
Provide a number of educational success resources (e.g., high school diploma, GED, tutoring, proficiency preparation), 
workforce readiness, training, and job opportunity programs statewide.   
 

  

http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/PDFS/Jobseeker_Resource_Guide.pdf
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/ESD%20Pages/vets%20services.htm
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/ESD%20Pages/jobsearch.htm
https://nvos.state.nv.us/seeker/index.asp
http://nevada.us.jobs/
https://nvcis.intocareers.org/materials/portal/home.html
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/centers/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/Rehab%20pages/rehab.htm
http://nvdetr.org/Rehab%20pages/voc%20rehab.htm
http://nvdetr.org/Rehab%20pages/BEN.htm
http://nvdetr.org/Rehab%20pages/TicketToWork.htm
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://nvdetr.org/ESD%20Pages/Forms%20PDFS/Veterans_Fact_Sheet_120111.pdf
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://vets.dol.gov/vets100/
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php
http://www.nevadaworks.com/
http://www.nvworkforceconnections.org/
http://nvdetr.org/
http://nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/
http://www.nevadajobconnect.com/jobs/index.php


 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Governor’s Workforce Investment Board – Industry Sector Council Pilot Programs 

 
Aerospace and Defense 
 

Machinist Training Program 
Description:   An educational training program that provides certifications of qualified machinists to support 

Nevada’s aerospace and defense industry.   
Goal:   To provide certification in the aviation and composites industries with well-trained technicians in 

the art of composite report, mold making, 3D printing, precision machining, and precision 
composite parts with an emphasis on customer service through convenience, accuracy of orders 
and timely delivery. 

Training Providers:   TBD – DETR Workforce Solutions Unit 
 Program Contact(s): TBD – (702)486-0522 

 
 

Jumpstart Nevada – After School STEM Program 
Description:   A science, technology, engineering, and mathematics (STEM) educational program aimed at K-12 

students to stimulate career interests in Nevada’s aerospace and defense industry.   
Goal:   To enhance STEM education in Nevada’s schools by introducing students at the primary and 

secondary school levels to the Unmanned Autonomous Systems (UAS; i.e., drone) industry, and 
providing multiple entry points into a variety of UAS applications. 

Training Providers:   Nevada school districts, statewide 
Program Contact(s): TBD - DETR Workforce Solutions Unit 

TBD – (702)486-0522 
Agriculture 
 

Agriculture Internship Program 
Description:    A paid internship program that works in conjunction with an existing University of  
   Nevada,  Reno agricultural program.   
Goal:   To provide internships that focus on plant science, greenhouse management, nursery 

management, and range management that will deliver invaluable experience directly related to 
the management and application of agricultural career areas that include both soft and hard skill 
sets.  

Training Provider:    University of Nevada, Reno 
Program Contact(s): Jim Barbee, Director, Nevada Department of Agriculture - jrbarbee@agri.nv.gov  
   o: (775) 353-3600 

Clean Energy 
 

USGBC LEED Green Associate Training Program 
Description:   A certification program that provides demonstrable key technical knowledge, experience and 

credibility in the green building marketplace. 
Goal:   To provide nationally recognized/transferrable credentials that signifies the education and 

training that the holder possesses, as well as being an active participant in the green building 
movement who contributes his/her expertise to the design, construction, operations, and 
maintenance of green buildings.  

Training Providers:   Sellen Sustainability (Las Vegas) 
Program Contact(s): Jennifer Turchin – Jennifer.turchin@sellen.com 
   o:  (702)795-2285; c:  (702)232-3501;  f: (702)795-2295 
 

Health Care and Medical Services 
 

Community Health Worker Training Program 
Description:   A postsecondary educational program for the development and delivery of a standardized core 

curriculum to educate and deliver training of basic health management, chronic disease self-
management and other core health care skills to prepare participants, who serve as liaisons, links 
and intermediaries between health/social services and the communities.   

Goal:   To facilitate improved access to health care services via health care workers who receive quality 
instruction and training in cultural competencies and the delivery of health care services.  

Training Providers:   College of Southern Nevada (Las Vegas) 
   Truckee Meadows Community College (Reno) 
Program Contact(s): Joan Rutledge – joan.rutledge@csn.edu 
   o: (702) 651-4344; f: (702) 651-4348 

1   

mailto:jrbarbee@agri.nv.gov
mailto:Jennifer.turchin@sellen.com
mailto:joan.rutledge@csn.edu


Information Technology 
 

Microsoft® IT Academies 
Description:   A statewide secondary educational and training program for IT skills and competencies, which are 

in demand and requisite for Nevada’s IT industry employers. 
Goal:   To provide Nevada’s youth with an educational and training program that will deliver fundamental 

technology and digital literacy skills to prepare them for careers and/or educational pursuits in 
STEM-associated careers. 

Training Providers:   Nevada school districts, statewide 
Program Contact(s): TBD - DETR Workforce Solutions Unit 

TBD – (702)486-0522 
 

Logistics and Operations 
 

Commercial Driver’s License (CDL) Training 
Description:   A training program for adults that provides commercial driver’s instruction for trucks, 

tractor/trailers and buses that meet the requirements for the Nevada Department of 
Transportation’s regulations for CDL licensure. 

Goal:   To provide a comprehensive and all-inclusive CDL training program to facilitate CDL licensure in 
the State of Nevada, which will enhance employers’ needs and employment in the commercial 
trucking industry. 

Training Providers:   Southwest Truck Driver Training (Las Vegas) 
   Nevada Truck Driving School (Reno) 
Program Contact(s): Judith Turgiss – jlturgiss@nvdetr.org 
   o: (702) 651-4826 

 
 

Manufacturing 
 

ACT National Career Readiness Certificate™ (NCRC) 
Description:   A statewide, industry-recognized, portable, research-based credential program that certifies 

essential skills needed for workplace success.  There are three WorkKeys® assessments within the 
ACT NCRC:  applied mathematics, locating information and reading for information, which assess 
and measure ‘real world’ skills that employers believe are critical to job success. 

Goal:   To provide industry-recognizable, portable credentials to Nevadans to help facilitate their 
competitiveness in the job market, specifically Nevada’s manufacturing industry. 

Training Providers:   Nevada Workforce Development, statewide 
Program Contact(s): Judith Turgiss – jlturgiss@nvdetr.org 
   o: (702) 651-4826 
 
 

Mining and Materials 
 

Electrical and Instrumentation Skilled Labor Shortage Program 
Description:   An educational training program that provides certifications of qualified technicians to provide the 

skill sets that are in demand and requisite for Nevada’s mining and materials industry employers.  
Goal:   To provide specific postsecondary coursework and training in the mining electrical and 

instrumentation field that will deliver skillsets that students will gain including industry-driven, 
work experience and training to produce work-ready graduates towards a pathway into Nevada’s 
mining and materials industries.  

Training Providers:   Great Basin College (Elko) 
Program Contact(s): Bret Murphy – bret.murphy@gbcnv.edu 
   o: (702) 753-2217 

2 

mailto:jlturgiss@nvdetr.org
mailto:jlturgiss@nvdetr.org
mailto:bret.murphy@gbcnv.edu


The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

Nevada Labor Market Briefing  

Department of Employment, Training & 
Rehabilitation 

 
Don Soderberg, Director 

Bill Anderson, Chief Economist 
Christopher Robison, Supervising Economist 

 

  Prepared by the Research and Analysis Bureau for 
presentation to the Governor’s Workforce Investment 

Board, October 2014 



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

Unemployment Rate Ticks Down to 
7.3%; About Half of Recession Peak 
NV vs. the U.S. Unemployment Rate (SA) 

 
 

 

1 

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

'05 '06 '07 '08 '09 '10 '11 '12 '13 '14

NV U.S.



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

NV’s Rate is 5th Highest in the Nation 
Unemployment Rate Rankings (SA) 

 
 

 

2 

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10%

Georgia

Mississippi/DC

Rhode Island

NV/TN/CA

Michigan

Minnesota

Nebraska

Utah

South Dakota

North Dakota
51

49
48

45
44

5
4

3
2

1



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

FT Employment on the Rise; PT Holds Steady 
Full-Time vs. Part-Time Employment (CPS data; 12-month 
moving average) 

6 

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

'05 '06 '07 '08 '09 '10 '11 '12 '13 '14

Full-Time Part-Time



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

NV Adds 38,200 Jobs Relative to Year-
Ago; Trending up for 45 months 
Nonfarm Jobs in Nevada (SA) 

8 

1,000,000

1,050,000

1,100,000

1,150,000

1,200,000

1,250,000

1,300,000

1,350,000

1,400,000

'04 '05 '06 '07 '08 '09 '10 '11 '12 '13 '14



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

Job Growth Hovering in 3%-4% Range 
the Past Half-Year 
Job Growth (SA; year-over-year) 

   9 

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

45,000

50,000

O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S

2012 2013 2014

percent change
jo

bs

Jobs Pct. Change



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

NV on Pace to Add Close to 100K Jobs 
Since 2010 
Nevada Job Growth Since 2010 

 
 

 

10 

Total
(Private+Public) Private Sector

2010 Baseline 1,117,800 964,000

Calculation of 2011 Growth
2011 1,125,700 975,500
Growth from 2010 7,900 11,500

Calculation of 2012 Growth
2012 1,144,800 995,500
Growth from 2011 19,100 20,000

Calculation of 2013 Growth
2013 1,175,700 1,024,700
Growth from 2012 30,900 29,200

Calculation of 2014 Year-to-Date Growth
2013 Year-to-Date (through September) 1,167,600 1,017,500
2014 Year-to-Date (through September) 1,209,400 1,058,800
Year-to-Date Growth from 2013 41,800 41,300

Total Growth Since 2010 (2011 Growth + 
2012 Growth + 2013 Growth + 2014 YTD 
Growth) 99,700 102,000



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

Nearly All Sectors Contributing; PBS 
Leads the Way…10K New Jobs 
YTD Job Growth by Sector 

 
 

 

11 

-2,000 0 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,000 10,000 12,000

Mining & Logging

Government

Other Services

Financial Activities

Manufacturing

Education & Health Services

Construction

Trade, Transportation, & Utilities

Leisure & Hospitality

Professional & Business Services



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

NV Jobs up 3.6% Through First 9 mos. 
This Year; Double Growth in the US 
Job Growth (year-over-year) 

 
 

 

12 

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

'05 '06 '07 '08 '09 '10 '11 '12 '13 '14 YTD

NV U.S.



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

Job Growth Stronger Than in 48 States 
Job Growth Rankings (# of states with slower private sector job 
growth than NV; 2014 YTD through IQ) 

50 49

46

14

2
0 0

14

24

38

48

0

10

20

30

40

50

'04 '05 '06 '07 '08 '09 '10 '11 '12 '13 '14 YTD

14 



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

Wages Expand by a Solid 2.7% During 
2014:IQ; Strongest Gain in Five Qtrs. 
NV Avg. Weekly Wage Growth: Year-Over-Year 

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

'05 '06 '07 '08 '09 '10 '11 '12 '13 '14 YTD

17 



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

Number of Employers on the Rise; Up 
12 Straight Qtrs.; Barely Below Peak 
Number of Nevada Employers 

50,000

52,000

54,000

56,000

58,000

60,000

62,000

'05 '06 '07 '08 '09 '10 '11 '12 '13 '14

20 



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

Nevada’s Economy Dominated by Small 
Establishments 
Number of Establishments by Employment Size 

0 10,000 20,000 30,000 40,000 50,000

1000+

500-999

250-499

100-249

50-99

20-49

10-19

5-9

0-4

Establishments

Es
tab

lis
hm

en
t S

ize
 (E

mp
loy

me
nt)

21 



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

Big Job Gain in Est. with 1,000+ 
Workers; Small/Mid-Size Est. also Solid 
2013:IQ-2014:IQ Job Growth by Establishment Size 

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000 8,000

500-999

0-4

5-9

10-19

100-249

250-499

50-99

20-49

1000+

Job Growth

Es
tab

lis
hm

en
t S

ize
 (E

mp
loy

me
nt)

22 



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

Small Business Adding Employment 
Since 2010 
Employment in Establishments with less than 100 Workers 

 450,000

 470,000

 490,000

 510,000

 530,000

 550,000

 570,000

 590,000

 610,000

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

23 



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

Job Levels Surpass Pre-Recessionary 
Peak in 2016/2017 
Total Jobs: History and Forecast 

24 

1,000,000

1,050,000

1,100,000

1,150,000

1,200,000

1,250,000

1,300,000

1,350,000

1,400,000

'03 '04 '05 '06 '07 '08 '09 '10 '11 '12 '13 '14 '15 '16 '17



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

By 2017, Nearly 40,000 Construction 
Jobs Added Since Bottoming Out 
Construction Jobs: History and Forecast 

25 

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

'03 '04 '05 '06 '07 '08 '09 '10 '11 '12 '13 '14 '15 '16 '17



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

Going Forward, Growth Expected to 
Strengthen for Manufacturing Jobs 
Manufacturing Jobs: History and Forecast 

26 

35,000

37,000

39,000

41,000

43,000

45,000

47,000

49,000

51,000

53,000

'03 '04 '05 '06 '07 '08 '09 '10 '11 '12 '13 '14 '15 '16 '17



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

Retail Trade Should Continue Adding 
About 4,000 Jobs Annually 
Retail Trade Jobs: History and Forecast 

27 

100,000

110,000

120,000

130,000

140,000

150,000

160,000

'03 '04 '05 '06 '07 '08 '09 '10 '11 '12 '13 '14 '15 '16 '17



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

Expectations are for an Additional 3,000 
Healthcare Jobs per Year 
Healthcare/Social Assistance Jobs: History and Forecast 

28 

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

110,000

120,000

130,000

'03 '04 '05 '06 '07 '08 '09 '10 '11 '12 '13 '14 '15 '16 '17



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

AFS Jobs Have Reached Historical 
Peak; 40K Additional Jobs Expected 
Accommodation/Food Services Jobs: History and Forecast 

29 

250,000

275,000

300,000

325,000

350,000

375,000

'03 '04 '05 '06 '07 '08 '09 '10 '11 '12 '13 '14 '15 '16 '17



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

NV’s Unemployment Rate Trending 
Down…6.5% in 2015; 5.5% in 2016 
Unemployment Rate:  History and Forecast 

 
 

 

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

'07 '08 '09 '10 '11 '12 '13 '14 '15 '16

30 



The Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation is a proactive workforce & rehabilitation agency  

For Additional Information, Please Contact: 

Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation 
Research and Analysis Bureau 

 
Bill Anderson 

Chief Economist 
 wdanderson@nvdetr.org  

 
(775) 684-0450 

http://www.nevadaworkforce.com 
follow us on Twitter @nvlabormarket 

  
 

 

   

mailto:wdanderson@nvdetr.org
http://www.nevadaworkforce.com/


GWIB AEROSPACE AND DEFENSE SECTOR COUNCIL 

WRITTEN QUARTERLY REPORT TO THE GWIB 

Thursday, October 23, 2014 1:00 p.m. – 4:30 p.m. 

 

1. Introduction – Each Chair should begin by introducing themselves in the report and 
inform the GWIB of what sector they are representing. 

Chair: Dr Ken Witcher representing the Aerospace and Defense Sector Council. Appointed 
October 2012. 

Vice-Chair: James Callahan 

2. The Chair should provide highlights on the Council’s opinion of On-The-Job (OJT) 
Training for their industry sector (for example, what is the value industry 
employers place on Certificates, OJT, or both)? 

Certifications are significant within the aerospace and defense sector. Many of the 
applicable certificates originate within the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and are 
considered a requirement before entering the workforce.  Examples are the FAA pilot 
license and airframe & powerplant certificate. Although these certificates are an entry into 
the industry, specific platform/airframe OJT is almost always required as well. This would 
be provided by the original equipment manufacturers, the hiring company, or in some 
cases local schools/training facilities. 

3. What type of Marketing or Outreach does your Council’s feel would be beneficial to 
inform people of industry training and employment opportunities? 

Further details can be provided after adding this topic to the next sector council meeting 
agenda. It is the Chair’s opinion, marketing of training and employment opportunities 
should be focused on retiring and separating military members at Nellis, Creech, and 
Fallon. We should also provide outreach to graduating engineers from UNLV, UNR, and 
local schools such as the Aviation Institute of Maintenance (AIM). 

4. Mention anything the Chair wishes to that is relevant to workforce development and 
their sector council.  

The Chair wishes to inform the GWIB of the need for additional activities to make retiring 
and separating members of the DoD facilities and branches aware of employment 
opportunities within our state. 

kknelson
Highlight



5. The composition of the sector council and any membership categories that need to 
be filled. 
 

The current composition of the council meets the requirements of our charter. There are no 
areas needing filled.  

 
6. Close the report by giving the GWIB members the date of your next sector council 

meeting and extend an invitation to the GWIB to attend the session. 

The next meeting is Friday, Oct 24, 2014 



 

GWIB AGRICULTURE SECTOR COUNCIL 

WRITTEN QUARTERLY REPORT TO THE GWIB 

Thursday, October 23, 2014 

My name is Amber Smyer with the Nevada Department of Agriculture and Chair of 
the GWIB Agriculture Sector Council.   

The Agriculture Sector Council plans to collect data from the industry in 2015 as to 
the value and importance they place on certificates, specifically.  Although there are 
some national certifications that would be recognized by agriculture businesses, it is 
not a universal adoption, therefore we are looking to see what value Nevada 
agriculture companies specifically place on certification, what type of certification 
they require, or what type of certification they might desire should it not already 
exist.  Similarly, we believe from Council experience there is high value in on-the-job 
(OJT) training to develop knowledge and skills not found, or easily gained, in other 
settings.  In addition to the industry survey we plan to do in 2015, we believe our 
pilot program host sites and students will provide valuable feedback around OJT.  
 
We believe that it would be helpful to the industry to have a general public 
campaign that agriculture is strong in Nevada providing diverse jobs and 
contributing to the economy and communities.  The key in our mind would be 
educate youth and other job seekers on the diverse career opportunities in Nevada’s 
agriculture industry from food scientist to farm supply store manager.   

We are currently in the process of finalizing our pilot project in collaboration with 
UNR College of Agriculture, Biotechnology and Natural Resources.  The project will 
provide paid internships to 10 students. The internships will focus on plant science, 
greenhouse management, nursery management, and range management based on 
the demand for training previously identified.  Intern host sites will be recruited 
through the end of 2014 and students will be placed starting late spring/early 
summer 2015.  

Our last meeting included a review of the Council composition and we are currently 
looking to fill a positions for two local elected officials, one labor representative and 
to continue to recruit business representatives within the industry, which would 
bring the Council makeup into compliance with the GWIB Industry Sector Council 
Bylaws.  

 

kknelson
Highlight



 

The next Agriculture Sector Council meeting will be focused on an in-depth review 
of the strategic plan, developing assignments and timelines for tangible deliverables, 
and recruiting representatives to help move the Council forward in 2015. 

Our next meeting will be November 19, 2014 at 2:00 pm, we would invite you to 
attend our meeting to garner more information about our sector.  

 



GOVERNOR’S WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
October 23, 2014 Meeting 

GWIB Clean Energy Sector Council Update 
 
Sector:  Clean Energy 
Chairperson:  Eric Dominguez 
Vice-Chairperson:  Thomas Piechota, PhD, PE 
 
 
On The Job Training 

 
• Certificates and specialized training are important aspects of the Clean Energy Sector.  This 

sector is relatively broad by definition and traditional skills and education (engineering, IT, 
trades such as electricians or pipefitters, etc.) often form the foundation for employees in this 
sector.  Certifications and specialized training are differentiators that employers seek that make 
members of this workforce more employable. 

• Examples of certifications and specialized training of importance include Leadership in Energy 
and Environmental Design Certification (LEED); Association of Energy Engineers Certifications; 
specialized degrees and training; Clean Energy Apprenticeships; Solar Installer Qualifications 
course; Professional Engineering designation. 

 
 

Marketing or Outreach Recommended 
 

• Outreach should be targeted based on employer requirements for specialized skills or training. 
• Within our sector, additional work is needed to characterize industry needs.  We are hoping to 

complete a targeted survey and/or focus group with the top 20 clean energy sector employers 
to identify their current needs as well as future needs within this sector when it comes to 
training and development.  Following that exercise we believe that aligning training with 
demand could be accomplished through targeted marketing to segments of the unemployed or 
underemployed best suited to meet industry demands. 

 
Other Updates 
 

• Our LEED certification pilot is underway and will provide workforce training to further enhance 
skills and training related to green building construction and operations.  This pilot aligns with 
the Clean Energy Sector Council’s strategic plan. 

• The recent announcement of the Tesla selecting Nevada for their battery factory was very good 
news for the state and for the Clean Energy Sector.  Tesla will not only provide many direct jobs, 
but there’s a strong likelihood that other like-minded industries will give closer consideration to 
Nevada when it comes time to relocate or establish operations.  We anticipate workforce 
training and development opportunities will arise as a result of the Tesla announcement giving 
Nevadan’s a new opportunity to find employment in the Clean Energy Sector.  Battery 
technology was identified in the Clean Energy Sector strategic plan as a key area of focus for the 
state and we will continue to seek opportunities to further develop the workforce within this 
sector.  

1 | P a g e  
 

kknelson
Highlight



 

Sector Council Composition 
 

• Since the last GWIB meeting, the council welcomed the following new members: 
- Dr. Kent Koekman 
- Patti Carney-Stjernelund 

 
• Additionally, invitations were sent to the following people to request their participation on the 

council: 
- Lauren Boitel 

 
 

Next Sector Council Meeting 
 

• Our next sector council meeting will be held on November 21, 2014 at 10 am.   
 

• Members of the Governor’s Workforce Investment Board are welcome to attend. 
 
 

 

 

2 | P a g e  
 



GWIB Health Care and Medical Services Sector Council Report to the  
Governors Workforce Investment Board (GWIB) 

October 23, 2014 
 

Chair: Dr. Marcia Turner 

In-Demand Career Identification and Curriculum Alignment 

The Council has several initiatives underway to address curriculum alignment with the sector’s 
in-demand occupations and the major highlights are as follows: 

• Vance Farrow, council member and industry specialist with the Governor’s Office of 
Economic Development, has shared the process for the study his office is conducting.  
The survey is designed to gather information to help improve healthcare workforce 
development. The questions were designed to determine whether or not the State of 
Nevada has the capability to meet Nevada hospitals’ workforce demands for the near 
future (18 months).  The survey results will lead to more follow up with higher 
education entities, trade groups and/or DETR.  Dr. John Packham, Chair of the Council’s 
Data/Evaluation/Research Subcommittee, will work with Mr. Farrow for a more 
targeted use of the survey data and to focus in on the gaps. 

• The Council is updating its Layered Strategic Plan, which is a combination of the 
Subcommittees’ Strategic Plans.  Each Subcommittee Chairperson has worked with the 
members of their Subcommittee to identify objectives and measurable progress and 
outcome milestones.  The deliverables include: health workforce supply and demand 
data collection projects; industry outreach and coordination projects; education and 
training program inventory development and analysis projects; identification of key 
legislative and regulatory issues; and workforce development grant projects. 

• The Council’s Data/Evaluation/Research Subcommittee, chaired by Dr. John Packham, 
continues to review Dr. Packham’s Health Workforce in Nevada Report, which will be 
updated. Dr. Packham will begin work on the production of the manual, Health Care 
Careers in Nevada 2015-2016 Edition. These manuals are tremendous resources for 
those focusing on Nevada’s health care occupations.  Additional reports produced by Dr. 
Packham include: Nevada Residency and Fellowship Training Outcomes; Health 
Workforce Recruitment and Retention in Nevada; Nursing Workforce in Nevada – 
Findings from the National Council of State Boarding of Nursing’s National Workforce 
Survey of RNs; The Contribution of the University of Nevada School of Medicine to the 
Nevada Economy; Nevada Residency and Fellowship Training Outcomes, 2004 to 2013 – 
Key Findings from the Annual UNSOME Resident Exit Survey; and, Physician Workforce 
in Nevada. 

kknelson
Highlight



 

Other Highlights: 

• Pilot Program Proposals 

Background: DETR asked all of the Sector Councils to submit pilot program proposals for 
innovative training of workforce within their Sector.  The pilot program proposal that DETR 
approved for the Health Care and Medical Services Sector Council is a program that is a 
partnership to train and employ Community Health Workers.  For this pilot program, a team 
from the NSHE Health Sciences System, College of Southern Nevada (CSN) and Truckee 
Meadows Community College (TMCC) and the Governor’s Office of Economic Development 
teamed up with health care industry representatives to develop an entry-level curriculum, train 
20 students at CSN and 20 students at TMCC as part of the pilot program and assist graduates 
with work placement.  Upon completion, an evaluation will be conducted to ensure 
effectiveness prior to further expansion. 

Update:  The Community Health Worker Pilot Program begins in October and ends later this 
year. The curriculum is developed and the 40 total slots have been filled. Once the evaluation of 
the program is complete, the results will be assessed and a report will be generated. 

• Robert Wood Johnson Foundation Grant 

Background: The Health Care and Medical Services Sector Council has worked in partnership 
with the Nevada Action Coalition, a group of Nursing and business leaders, the Nevada System 
of Higher Education and DETR, to pursue a $150,000 grant from the Robert Wood Johnson 
Foundation.  DETR provided the $75,000 in matching funds which enabled us to pursue this 
grant.  We were notified in November, 2013 that we received this two-year grant.  We have 
also received a donation of $10,000 from the Nevada Hospital Association to support this 
initiative.  

The core objectives of the Nevada SIP Grant are to:  

• Promote nurse residency programs to support the transition of nurses from education 
into practice, re-entry into practice after a hiatus, or for the advancement of an 
incumbent nursing workforce; 

• Promote educational advancement pathways to increase the proportion of nurses with 
baccalaureate degrees;  

• Create a diversity task force to promote diversity in the nursing education pipeline and 
workforce; and 

• Collect data to support nursing education to support nursing workforce planning.  
 



The Grant is on track with its deliverables. 

 

Council Membership 

The Council’s current membership count is 26 members.  The two areas membership is needed 
is a labor representative for the sector and three local elected officials (one for Northern 
Nevada, one for Southern Nevada, and one for the rural areas). 

 

Scheduled Meetings 

The Council is holding full council meetings quarterly, and the Subcommittees meet monthly, 
bi-monthly, or quarterly, depending on their initiatives.  For the remainder of this year, the full 
Council will meet in November.  We encourage you to become involved with our activities.  If 
you would like to attend one of our meetings, please contact Earl McDowell, Deputy 
Administrator of DETR’s Workforce Solutions Unit, for additional details (e-
mcdowell@nvdetr.org). 

 

 

  

 

mailto:e-mcdowell@nvdetr.org
mailto:e-mcdowell@nvdetr.org


Governor’s Workforce Investment Board Meeting 
October 23, 2014 

Report from GWIB Information Technology Sector Council 
 

My name is Michael Frechette.  As Chairman of the Information Technology Sector Council, I am 
pleased to make the following quarterly report to the Nevada Governor’s Workforce 
Investment Board. 

Industry Certifications and On-The-Job Training 

The industry considers certifications in certain disciplines (E.g. Security, Project Management) 
and on certain systems (E.g. Microsoft, Cisco) of paramount importance. In many circumstances 
certifications are requirements. Even when they are not, they can be a deciding factor between 
candidates.  

OJT is very important as well but many companies lack focus and attention to formalized 
training programs and monitored OJT.  

Marketing 

More direct marketing to potential candidates should take place over the internet.  Platform 
like Social Media and Mobile apps advertisements would be very beneficial.  

In-Demand Occupations 

The IT Sector Council is focused on the following in-demand occupations: 

• Software development 
• Cyber-security/information assurance 
• Network systems administrator 
• Healthcare IT specialist 
• Project manager/coordinator 
• Database administrator 

Pilot Program 

Last quarter DETR authorized $75,000 to fund up to 15 Microsoft IT Academy pilot programs in 
secondary schools.  A solicitation of interest was made to all 17 county school districts; of 
these, the following nine schools in five districts requested funds for a pilot. 

• Clark County: Bonanza High School, Cimarron Memorial High School, Foothills High 
School, Las Vegas High School, and Silverado High School 

• Elko County: Carlin High School 

kknelson
Highlight



• Mineral County: The Adult High School Program 
• Storey County: Virginia City High School 
• Washoe County: Sparks High School 
• Under the current plan, each school will receive $5,000 to support the pilot 

The council is currently collecting metrics to ensure that this project is being employed as 
planned.  

Future Initiatives 

1. The council is working on a Public/Private program that will a take unemployed 
individuals through a program that will train them in Project Management Principles, 
Soft Skills Training and a paid 90 day internship as Project Coordinators with the use of a 
corporate mentor. The end goal is a 75%+ conversion rate to full time from the 
sponsoring companies. 

2. The council is working with military representatives from local bases and veterans  
organizations to capture and help transition Active Duty personnel to the civilian 
workforce.  

Council’s Membership Composition 

The Council currently has 21 members and is seeking representation for the following areas: 
Labor; Local Elected Officials; and a Representative from the Nevada Senate or Assembly. 

Date of Next Meeting 

Our Council is scheduled to have its next meeting on Wednesday, November 5, 2014 at 8:30am.  
If you would like additional details, please contact DETR’s Workforce Solutions Unit at (702) 
486-0523. 

 



GWIB LOGISTICS AND OPERATIONS SECTOR COUNCIL 
QUARTERLY REPORT TO THE GWIB 

October 23, 2014 
 

1. Introduction – Bradley E. Woodring, Chair of the GWIB Logistics and Operations Sector 
Council since August 29, 2013 

 

2. Current Activities of Council Addressing of Workforce Needs – Most of the council’s 
time has been spent in trying to discern where to go with the limited information that 
we have been able to mine in our previous efforts.  We are currently restructuring our 
efforts around that limited information, addressing smaller, more effective actions in 
our plan to gain momentum and communicate with the training and educational 
institutions. 
 
We are additionally seeking and recruiting new members from the business community 
as well.   
 
DETR’s Workforce Solutions Unit Deputy Administrator, Earl McDowell, and his staff 
have been great in their support of both of these works. 
 

3. Logistics and Operations Sector Council Strategic Plan Update –  

To date, the participation on the council has been consistent but by a very small group 
of attendees.  To that end, many of the action items that accompanied our strategic 
plan initiatives have suffered with the all volunteer council members attempting to 
cover all basis. 

Council member Dr. Alan Schlottman has stepped up to take on the role of seeing the 
Strategic Plan to completion.  We will be moving in a different direction with looking at 
a very few specific skill sets to address in order to make positive gains.  We will be taking 
from the intelligence already gathered in our earlier surveys along with new information 
that we recently received to address this.   

The result will be individual working groups for each skill set to be addressed to 
determine where and how the training can be derived or obtained.  

4. Sector Council Member Update – We continue to add new members to the group.  In 
the past quarter, Greg Carroll of FF&E Logistical, Inc. became a new member. 
 

5. Next Logistics and Operations Sector Council Meeting – The next Council meeting will 
be held December 2, 2014 and all GWIB members are encouraged to attend at any one 

kknelson
Highlight



of the several video conference locations.  Please contact De Salazar at DETR for 
information.  Her email address is mdsalazar@nvdetr.org. 

mailto:dsalazar@nvdetr.org


GWIB MANUFACTURING SECTOR COUNCIL 
QUARTERLY REPORT TO THE GWIB 

October 23, 2014 
 
Chairman: Ryan Costella 
 

As reported previously, we are pleased to have received the funding to launch a pilot program 
that will result in at least 1,500 people across the state receiving the National Career Readiness 
Certificate at the silver level or higher, meeting the prospective entry-level workforce demands 
for the manufacturing sector for the next two years. 

All of the community colleges statewide, as well as DETR’s JobConnect and “One-Stop” training 
locations statewide, are equipped to begin testing and training. The license to administer this 
training has already been negotiated between DETR and ACT. 

While we know all manufacturing employers looking to fill entry-level positions will benefit 
from this program, we want to make sure there is sufficient demand amongst the employer 
base to prove the effectiveness and sustainability of this credential over the long term. 

At present, we have put out an RFP to develop effective targeted outreach strategies that will 
enable our private sector partners to convince a broader base of manufacturers to utilize the 
testing centers and credential in screening prospective employees or promoting existing 
employees from within. We received one response/application for the RFP, which we have 
chosen to pursue. 

Our strategy will target manufacturers with at least 40 employees and who are growing. The 
thought here is that successful adoption by the larger employers will have a trickle-down effect 
with the smaller companies. 

To move this pilot project forward, we are still waiting for DETR to deliver the public data to 
enable the targeted outreach strategy. Our ultimate goal is for at least 25% of the target 
population (roughly 50 companies) to utilize the infrastructure and begin using the NCRC as a 
hiring tool. 

We believe the outcomes from a broader base of manufacturing employers will lay the 
foundation for a universal adoption of the credential as a tool for measuring attainment of 
foundational skills in all sectors across the state. 

We look forward to presenting more substantial progress on the pilot program at the next 
meeting of the GWIB. 

kknelson
Highlight

kknelson
Highlight



GWIB MINING AND MATERIALS SECTOR COUNCIL 

QUARTERLY Report for GWIB 

October 23, 2014 

 

Dana Pray – Chair of the Mining GWIB Sector Council 

The Council has not yet addressed the value of On-The-Job (OJT) Training for our industry 
sector; however, the Council is looking at how to bring some consistency to hiring individual’s 
with certificates in the industry.   

2014 Strategic Plan: 

a. We have an Inventory critical jobs, on top of that list are the maintenance 
disciplines. 

We have the following sub-committees making progress: 

b. Military – partnering with the state to bring interest from the returning vets to 
present career opportunities.  Newmont and Barrick are partnering to spread 
pathways out at career fairs, websites and direct military communications. 

c. Career Pathways – firming up the mining career pathways for proper distribution 
to all government sectors and for marketing purposes.  This committee has 
made great strides in creating marketing materials! 

d. Internships/outreach to all levels of education.  Currently creating and 
distributing a survey to see who in the industry would consider doing more in 
this area. 

e. Marketing – we will be looking for more ways to market mining careers in the 
state. 

Currently, the Council has 24 active members.  We continually seek Business Representatives 
for our industry sector.  In addition, the categories of Labor Representative in the Sector and 
one more Local Elected Official need to be filled. 

The GWIB Mining Sector plans to meet again November 19th.  We invite anyone interested in 
attending to join us.    

kknelson
Highlight



GWIB TOURISM, GAMING, AND ENTERTAINMENT SECTOR COUNCIL 

WRITTEN QUARTERLY REPORT TO THE GWIB 

October 23, 2014, 1:00 p.m. 
 

1. Introduction: 
 

My name is Katherine Jacobi, and I am the Chair for the GWIB Tourism, Gaming and 
Entertainment Sector Council. 

 
 

2. Highlights on Council’s  investigation of On-the Job Training and Certificates within 
the Sector: 

 
The TG&E council has reviewed results of survey’s sent out by DETR’s Bureau of 
Research and Analysis on behalf of the Council to obtain greater understanding 
about the broad range of industry employer needs. Based on data from several 
surveys for the Tourism, Gaming and Entertainment sector, only 22% of companies 
in this sector conduct in-house training, internships or apprenticeships. 
Overwhelmingly, the reason given for difficulty in filling positions is ‘lack of 
qualified candidates’. The second highest challenge is to fill positions with 
‘specialized job requirements’. 
 
Soft skills ranked highest in competencies valued by the businesses, followed by 
problem solving. Reading, Writing, and Mathematics all ranked lower on the scale 
for value to the company. As reported to the GWIB previously by this Council, a 
consistent gap found at all employee levels throughout the sector is the lack of 
basic workplace competencies and guest service skills that are vital for success in 
the service-centric environment of hospitality. 
 
For registered apprenticeships, the Council has found that there are measureable 
outcomes, such as academic achievement, wage increases, retention, and skill 
attainment. Additional information that the Council is reviewing includes on-the-
job training requirements, related supplemental course studies, and progressive 
wage increases. 

 
 

3. Marketing and Outreach that would be beneficial to inform people of industry training 
and employment opportunities: 

 
Various trade groups within the council sector can promote awareness via their 
respective newsletters, e-blasts, social media, and website postings. Post-secondary 
institutions can also promote the availability of training opportunities through their 
communication channels. 

kknelson
Highlight



 
 

4. Other  Matters  Relevant  to  the  Workforce  Development  of  this  Council’s  Industry 
Sector: 
 

The council has initiated a Social Media work group which is working with the IT    
sector council and the apprentice programs to vet solutions for industry needs in this 
area. Secondary and post-secondary experts are also working with the group to 
provide a comprehensive career path for this high demand area. 
 
Recent legislative developments have raised awareness of Nevada’s film industry. 
The TG&E council received a request from their leadership and they have been 
invited to our next council meeting to discuss their training needs for future projects. 

 
The Council has been reviewing results of a survey a n d  t h e  initial response 
rate was low.  Therefore, the survey link is being sent out again in order to get 
additional responses and the results will be discussed at the Council’s next 
meeting. 

 
5. Membership Composition and Additional Membership Categories to be Filled: 

 
The Council is currently comprised of 19 members – 8 business leaders, 5 college 
and university representatives, 1 regional development authority representative, 1 
local elected official, 2 representatives from K-12 education, and 2 members that are 
categorized as “other.” The Council seeks additional business leaders, and an 
industry specialist from the Governor’s Office of Economic Development. 

 
If the GWIB has any recommendations for additional membership to this Council, 
please send the information to Earl McDowell, Deputy Administrator. 

 
6. Next Sector Council Meeting 

 
We would like to invite you to the next GWIB Tourism, Gaming and 
Entertainment Sector Council meeting on November 17, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. For 
additional meeting details, please contact DETR’s Workforce Solutions Unit at 
(702)486-0523. 



1

















 

Quarterly Report to the Governor’s Workforce Investment Board 
October 23, 2014 

 
Events 

• On July 30th, Workforce Connections (WC) hosted the Information Technology (IT) 
Training Expo & Hiring Event.  This event helped the community gain exposure to 
employment opportunities within the IT sector. 
o Over 140 job seekers/candidates were connected with 10 potential employers and 10 

IT training providers. 
o The companies that participated were ready to hire trained-job seekers. 
o Participating employers and training partners included Switch, Link Technologies, 

Robert Half Technologies, Cox Communications, Inc., DTT Investigations, Las Vegas 
Monorail, Load-n-Go, Inc., DETR, TEK Systems, MGM Resorts, Stations Casinos, 
Sanford Brown College, The Learning Center, New Horizons Computer Learning 
Center, DeVry University, ITT Technical University, Las Vegas Professional Institute of 
Technology and Accounting, IEEE Las Vegas Section, and Larson School.  

One-Stop Delivery System (OSDS) 

• On September 3rd and 4th, 2014, in partnership with the College of Southern Nevada, WC 
launched its initial Workforce Development Academy (WDA) Youth and Adult & 
Dislocated Workers (ADW) cohorts. Approximately 40 students representing various WIA 
Youth and ADW service providers are participating. Preliminary courses include topics 
such as WIA Overview, Youth Recruitment, Individual Service Strategies, Individual 
Employment Plans, Case Management, and Training Services & Activities. The WDA 
builds system capacity by providing students an opportunity to upgrade their knowledge 
and skills, increase their credibility and value to the OSDS, learn best practices, and 
collaborate with other professionals in the workforce development arena. Courses will 
continue until the end of the year and culminate with a WIA capstone project.  

One-Stop Career Center (OSCC) 

• The OSCC launched its Back-to-Work 50+ program, which was established through a 
Workforce Investment Board Expansion Grant received from the national American 
Association of Retired Persons (AARP) Foundation.  WC was one of only four LWIBs 
across the country to be awarded this highly-competitive grant.  The centerpiece of the 
program is participation in an intensive, 12-week holistic coaching program that focuses 
on job readiness, self-esteem and emotional well-being.  Additional components of the 

  

1 

 



 

  
 
program include three days of Financial Education facilitated by Wells Fargo and 
exposure to Science, Technology, Engineering, and Math (STEM) occupations through 
WC’s STEM career exploration workshops. 

• On September 15th, WC hosted the first OSDS Partners meeting. Attendees at the 
meeting included various training partners, Three Square food bank, and the State of 
Nevada Division of Welfare and Supportive Services. Topics of discussion were focused 
on how to improve customer flow at the OSCC, as well as increased efficiency for the 
interagency referral process.  The primary deliverables identified from the meeting were 
the creation of an OSDS Partner Guidebook and a user-friendly and standardized 
Interagency Referral Form. 

• In September the OSCC established a new partnership with Dress for Success Southern 
Nevada that includes multiple workshops offered on-site at the OSCC.  In addition to 
one-day workshops open to the general public, Dress for Success Southern Nevada also 
facilitates an in-depth 7-week job readiness course that involves monthly meetings 
between participants and mentors.  Over 20 individuals were in attendance for the kick-
off session on September 17th. 

• The OSCC began hosting a weekly Re-Entry Job Club aimed at assisting individuals for 
whom a past criminal conviction is a barrier to employment.  The Job Club combines a 
series of informational seminars with peer support and networking, as well as 
opportunities to meet with potential employers.  Plans are in the works to launch 
additional population-specific job clubs targeting older workers or sector-specific clubs 
such as Health and Medical Services. 

• Four additional Level 1 and Level 2 STEM workshops for the OSDS were officially 
launched on May 13th at the OSCC. These additional career pathway exploration sessions 
will provide OSDS clients with further exposure to STEM competencies and skills 
required in occupations across Nevada’s nine key industry sectors. The Level 3 STEM 
workshops are in development and will be launched later this year. 

Strategic Initiatives 

• In compliance with state regulations, WC’s Annual Report for Program Year ending June 
30th, 2014, was submitted to DETR on August 1st, 2014. 

• On August 22nd, WC submitted a notice of interest to US DOL for the Transitioning 
Veterans Financial Coaching Program. The grant will bring additional resources to WC’s 
OSCC to provide financial coaching services to veterans. 

 

 
2 

 



 

 

• WC continues a comprehensive review and update of its policies and procedures. This 
effort assures continual compliance with local, state and federal regulations and provides 
the most flexibility for quality employment and training services to the community.   

Local Employers Advisory Panel (LEAP) 

• WCs’ LEAP continues to meet on a regular basis providing important local area labor 
intelligence to the OSDS. The panel is currently composed of 13 members and represents 
employers across Nevada’s key industry sectors.  

• The most recent LEAP meeting took place on July 30th. The next LEAP is planned for 
December.  

Business Engagement 

• Since the inception of the Workforce Connections Employer Compact, WC’s staff has 
worked diligently to acquire new employers that will make the commitment to hire from 
our public workforce development system. 
o The compact between WC and associated employers/businesses has proven that 

private industry is ready and willing to work with the Southern Nevada OSDS. 
o The executed compact is a milestone for the OSDS and compliments work that is 

being done by WC and the OSCC. 
o Fourteen new employers have signed the compact bringing the total to 33 

employers.  Recent signatories include:  Las Vegas Paving, Cox Cable, Towbin Dodge, 
Digiphoto, Vonage, and HomeCare by M&D, LLC.   

YouthBuild Las Vegas (YBLV) 

• YBLV began outreach and recruitment for its 6th cohort. Participating youth will be 
provided education, occupational skills training, and employment services while 
constructing new homes and/or rehabilitating older homes in low-income communities. 
As an AmeriCorps program, YBLV also provides community service and skill development 
opportunities for participants to earn the Segal AmeriCorps Education Award and apply 
it towards postsecondary education. YBLV partnerships include Desert Rose Adult High 
School and Habitat for Humanity Las Vegas. 

 
Reporting Charts (Pgs. 4 – 5)                 

3 

 



 

 

            

  

Adult and Dislocated Workers Trained by Industry Sector
June 1, 2014 through August 31, 2014

Average Training Cost by Sector

Number of Trainings by Sector

Aerospace & Defense ,  -

Agriculture,  -

Clean Energy,  8 

Health & Medical Services,  
59 

Information Technology,  9 

Logistics & Operations,  71 

Manufacturing,  1 

Mining & Materials,  -

Tourism, Gaming & Ent.,  
34 

Cross Sector,  38 NUMBER OF TRAININGS = 220 

 $-

 $500

 $1,000

 $1,500

 $2,000

 $2,500

 $3,000

 $3,500

 $4,000

$- $-

$1,774 
$1,645 

$3,771 

$2,655 

$3,900 

$-

$736 

$3,300 

$2,218 

4 

 



 

 

Adult and Dislocated Workers Employed by Industry Sector
June 1, 2014 through August 31, 2014

Wage by Sector

Employed by Sector
Aerospace & Defense ,  - Agriculture,  1 

Clean Energy,  17 

Health & Med. Services,  130 

Information Technology,  23 

Logistics & Operations,  120 

Manufacturing,  7 

Mining & Materials,  3 

Tourism, Gaming & Ent.,  
109 

Cross Sector,  190 

TOTAL EMPLOYED = 600

 $-

 $2.00

 $4.00

 $6.00

 $8.00

 $10.00

 $12.00

 $14.00

 $16.00

 $18.00

 $20.00

$-

$10.00 

$15.99 
$16.56 

$13.95 $13.44 

$15.79 

$19.54 

$11.90 $11.84 

$13.47 

5 

 



C:\Users\kknelson\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\XZ724RI4\FY15 09-30-14 WIA Analysis Summary by PY.xlsx/  Prog Summary by PY 10/7/2014/  9:16 AM

Budget
Committee
Approved Allocation Expenses Available Allocation Expenses % Available Allocation Expenses % Available Allocation Expenses % Available

Date Balance Spent Balance Spent Balance Spent Balance
NV Workforce Investment Boards
North (G/L 8750, 8752, 8754)

Adult (includes 25% transfer) 8,424,630.00 (5,393,202.93) 3,031,427.07 2,503,515.00 0.00 2,503,515.00 3,708,235.00 (3,180,322.93) 527,912.07 2,212,880.00 (2,212,880.00) 0.00
Youth 6,847,106.00 (4,509,342.92) 2,337,763.08 2,162,728.00 0.00 2,162,728.00 2,372,687.00 (2,197,651.92) 175,035.08 2,311,691.00 (2,311,691.00) 0.00
Dislocated Worker (includes 25% transfer) 8,880,184.00 (5,728,801.36) 3,151,382.64 2,834,575.00 0.00 2,834,575.00 2,810,247.00 (2,493,439.36) 316,807.64 3,235,362.00 (3,235,362.00) 0.00
Subtotal - North 24,151,920.00 (15,631,347.21) 8,520,572.79 7,500,818.00 0.00 0% 7,500,818.00 8,891,169.00 (7,871,414.21) 89% 1,019,754.79 7,759,933.00 (7,759,933.00) 100% 0.00

South (G/L 8751, 8753, 8755)
Adult (includes 25% transfer) 28,169,373.00 (17,087,030.76) 11,082,342.24 7,763,005.00 0.00 7,763,005.00 10,665,753.00 (7,346,415.76) 3,319,337.24 9,740,615.00 (9,740,615.00) 0.00
Youth 18,829,482.00 (10,229,017.95) 8,600,464.05 5,927,060.00 0.00 5,927,060.00 6,564,523.00 (3,891,118.95) 2,673,404.05 6,337,899.00 (6,337,899.00) 0.00
Dislocated Worker 13,270,927.00 (7,240,774.04) 6,030,152.96 5,706,078.00 0.00 5,706,078.00 4,140,823.00 (3,816,748.04) 324,074.96 3,424,026.00 (3,424,026.00) 0.00
Subtotal - South 60,269,782.00 (34,556,822.75) 25,712,959.25 19,396,143.00 0.00 0% 19,396,143.00 21,371,099.00 (15,054,282.75) 70% 6,316,816.25 19,502,540.00 (19,502,540.00) 100% 0.00

Total - Nevada Workforce Investment Boards 84,421,702.00 (50,188,169.96) 34,233,532.04 26,896,961.00 0.00 0% 26,896,961.00 30,262,268.00 (22,925,696.96) 76% 7,336,571.04 27,262,473.00 (27,262,473.00) 100% 0.00

Rapid Response
"Regular" RR 2,804,543.00 (1,760,917.36) 1,043,625.64 501,628.00 0.00 501,628.00 700,808.00 (158,810.36) 541,997.64 1,602,107.00 (1,602,107.00) 0.00
Nevadaworks contract PY11-DW-RR-01  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Nevadaworks contract PY11-DW-RR-01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Nevadaworks contract PY12-DW-RR-01 641,729.00 (641,729.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 641,729.00 (641,729.00) 0.00
Workforce Connections PY11-DW-RR-02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Workforce Connections PY11-DW-RR-02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Workforce Connections PY12-DW-RR-02 1,358,271.00 (1,358,271.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,358,271.00 (1,358,271.00) 0.00
Nevada State AFL CIO 1767-14-DETR 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Layoff Aversion PY11 Contract 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Layoff Aversion PY12 Contract 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Rapid Response - (Dislocated Worker) 4,804,543.00 (3,760,917.36) 1,043,625.64 501,628.00 0.00 0% 501,628.00 700,808.00 (158,810.36) 23% 541,997.64 3,602,107.00 (3,602,107.00) 100% 0.00

Administration
"Regular" Admin 5% 3,368,202.37 (3,213,241.27) 154,961.10 778,894.01 (623,932.91) 154,961.10 1,347,123.45 (1,347,123.45) 0.00 1,242,184.91 (1,242,184.91) 0.00
"Regular" Admin 3.75% Starts PY14 1,125,969.00 0.00 1,125,969.00 1,125,969.00 0.00 1,125,969.00
Research & Analysis CIS 2013-400808 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CSN Apprenticeship Contract PY12-GR-CSN 295,757.45 (295,757.45) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 295,757.45 (295,757.45) 0.00
TMCC Apprenticeship Contract PY12-GR-TMCC 66,229.80 (66,229.80) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 66,229.80 (66,229.80) 0.00
WNC Apprenticeship Contract PY12-GR-WNC 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CSN Apprenticeship Contract PY13-GR-CSN 376,084.54 (216,274.15) 159,810.39 162,949.99 (3,139.60) 159,810.39 213,134.55 (213,134.55) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TMCC Apprenticeship Contract PY13-GR-TMCC 50,148.00 (50,148.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50,148.00 (50,148.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
WNC Apprenticeship Contract PY13-GR-WNC 19,188.00 (19,188.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19,188.00 (19,188.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
JA Solari Audit Contract PY12-Audit/Solari exp 06/30/15 120,231.84 (43,882.47) 76,349.37 100,000.00 (23,650.63) 76,349.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 20,231.84 (20,231.84) 0.00
TMCC Apprenticeship Contract PY14-GR-TMCC 72,714.00 0.00 72,714.00 72,714.00 0.00 72,714.00
WNC Apprenticeship Contract PY14-GR-WNC 5,692.00 0.00 5,692.00 5,692.00 0.00 5,692.00
 CSN Apprenticeship Contract PY14-GR-CSN 381,043.00 0.00 381,043.00 381,043.00 0.00 381,043.00

Total Statewide - Administration 5,881,260.00 (3,904,721.14) 1,976,538.86 2,627,262.00 (650,723.14) 25% 1,976,538.86 1,629,594.00 (1,629,594.00) 100% 0.00 1,624,404.00 (1,624,404.00) 100% 0.00

TOTAL WIA 95,107,505.00 (57,853,808.46) 37,253,696.54 30,025,851.00 (650,723.14) 2% 29,375,127.86 32,592,670.00 (24,714,101.32) 76% 7,878,568.68 32,488,984.00 (32,488,984.00) 100% 0.00

Verify 95,107,505.00 (57,853,808.46) 37,253,696.54 30,025,851.00 (650,723.14) 29,375,127.86 32,592,670.00 (24,714,101.32) 7,878,568.68 32,488,984.00 (32,488,984.00) 0.00
Variance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Verify authority to allocations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Term:  04/01/14 - 6/30/17 Term:  04/01/13 - 6/30/16 Term:  04/01/12 - 6/30/15

State of Nevada
Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation

Workforce Investment Act Grant
Analysis of Expenditures

September 30, 2014

TOTAL PY14 PY13 PY12



 

 
 
 

WIA Performance Measures/Levels 
Program Year 2013 – Quarter Ending June 30, 2014 

 
PERFORMANCE 

MEASURES 
PY 2013 

NEGOTIATED 
LEVELS 

STATE NEVADAWORKS WORKFORCE 
CONNECTIONS  

Adults 
Entered 
Employment Rate 

72.5% 77% (E) 
1501/1958 

72% (80) 
329/455 

78%(E) 
1172/1503 

Retention Rate (6 
mths.) 

81.5% 
 

82% (E) 
1419/1728 

78% (80) 
394/508 

84% (E) 
1025/1220 

Average Earnings 
Gain  
(6 mths) 

 
$13,800 

 
$15,839 (E) 

 
13,587 (80) 

 
$16,700(E) 

Dislocated Workers 
Entered 
Employment Rate 

76% 81% (E) 
1034/1283 

78% (E) 
480/614 

83% (E) 
554/669 

Retention Rate (6 
mths.) 

84.5% 83% (80) 
849/1018 

83% (80) 
458/549 

83% (80) 
391/469 

Average Earnings 
Gain  
(6 mths.) 

 
$16,200 

 
$14,966(80) 

 
15,287 (80) 

 
$14,594 (80) 

Youth 
Placement in 
Education/ 
Employment 

62% 62% (M) 
1284/2060 

70% (E) 
205/295 

61% (80) 
1079/1765 

Attainment of a 
Degree/Certificate 

57 % 68%(E) 
1054/1556 

68%(E) 
173/254 

68%(E) 
881/1302 

Literacy/Numeracy 
Gain 

43% 38%(80) 
306/806 

 

64%(E) 
25/39 

37%(80) 
281/767 

 
Exceeded = (E); Met = (M); Within 80% = (80); Failed = (F) 

XX/XXX = Numerator/Denominator 
(This report is based on Department of Labor 9090 data-rolling 4 quarters) 



 

BRIAN SANDOVAL 
GOVERNOR 

 

DENNIS PEREA 
INTERIM DIRECTOR 

 

RENEE L. OLSON 
ADMINISTRATOR 

 

EMPLOYMENT 
SECURITY 
DIVISION 

 
WORKFORCE 
INVESTMENT 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

 

(date) 

 

Virginia Hamilton   
Regional Administrator, ETA San Francisco Regional Office 
U.S. DOL/ETA 
90 7th St., Ste. 17-300 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
 
Re:  Modification of Nevada Integrated Workforce Plan for Title I of the Workforce Investment 
Act of 1998 and Wagner-Peyser Act and Agricultural Outreach  
 
Dear Ms. Hamilton:   
 
The Nevada Department of Training, Employment and Rehabilitation (DETR) respectfully 
requests to modify the Integrated Workforce Plan for Title I of the Workforce Investment Act of 
1998 and Wagner-Peyser Act and Agricultural Outreach for the period of July 1, 2012 - June 30, 
2017. Specifically, DETR wishes to modify the sections that describe the methodology to make 
in-state allocations and the Agricultural Outreach Plan. 
 
Within State Allocations - Background 
 
In 2013 one of Nevada’s LWIBs requested a thorough review of the methodology and source 
documents used for the within state distribution of WIA funding. This resulted in several 
meetings with the LWIBs, in which it was decided that the Dislocated Worker allocation 
methodology needed revision. Research showed that the data used to calculate the respective 
share for Dislocated Worker funding was not representative of the true demand for workforce 
services in the State. These discussions led to recommendations from the State and both LWIB 
partners. A consensus was reached on how to proceed. 
 
Proposed Methodology 
 
The proposed methodology below is intended to replace the methodology that is in the current 
approved State Plan.  
Dislocated Worker Methodology Changes (in red) 
 
 
 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
2800 E. St. Louis Avenue • Las Vegas, NV 89104 • (702) 486-6632 • Fax (702) 486-6633 

500 E. Third Street • Carson City, NV 89713 • (775) 684-0301 • Fax (775) 684-0327 
 



Factors: Weightings Data Source 

Insured 
Unemployed 50% 

R&A  report: EM252 –R-1 (AR-6)  

Jan – Dec 

Unemployment 
Concentrations 

 
0% 

 
N/A 

 

Plant 
Closings/Mass 

Layoffs 
0% 

 
Justification: The data source for mass 
layoffs is not currently available in the 
new UI system and therefore it is being 
recommended that this measure be 
weighted at zero. Once this data is 
available again, an analysis will be 
conducted to determine if this would be 
a valid data source for this measure. 
 

Declining 
Industries 0% N/A 

Farmer-Rancher 
Economic 
Hardship 

0% 

 
Justification: Nevada’s agriculture 
sector employment is small and valid 
data to support a weighting is not 
available. The previous data source was 
found to skew the allocation 
disproportionately to the northern 
LWIB. 
 

Long-term 
Unemployed 50% 

R&A report: EM252 -R-1 (AR-6)  

Jan - Dec 

 
 
Based on the above methodology the current State Plan verbiage would change from: 
 

B.  Dislocated Worker Allotment 
1) Insured unemployment @ 20% 
2) Unemployment concentrations @ 0% 
3) Plant closings and mass layoff @ 30% 
4) Declining industries @ 0% 
5) Farmer-rancher economic hardship @ 15% 
6) Long-term unemployment @ 35% 

to: 

2 
 



 
B.  Dislocated Worker Allotment 
1) Insured unemployment @ 50% 
2) Unemployment concentrations @ 0% 
3) Plant closings and mass layoff @ 0% 
4) Declining industries @ 0% 
5) Farmer-rancher economic hardship @ 0% 
6) Long-term unemployment @ 50% 

 
In addition to the methodology changes above the State wishes to change the hold harmless verbiage in 
the State Plan from: 
 
Hold Harmless – In order to adjust for extreme or temporary changes in the yearly unemployment and 
economic disadvantage indicators or the policy year grant amount, a hold harmless provision may be 
implemented.  The hold harmless provision calculates a 90% average of the allocations for the preceding 
two years, excluding rescission and re-allotment and adjusts the amounts in the summary table above to 
compensate for relative declines or increases in the new policy year allotments for the NLWIB and SLWIB. 

to: 
 
Hold Harmless – In order to adjust for extreme or temporary changes in the yearly unemployment and 
economic disadvantage indicators or the policy year grant amount, a hold harmless provision may be 
implemented for Youth and Adult funding only.  The hold harmless provision calculates a 90% average 
of the allocations for the preceding two years, excluding rescission and re-allotment and adjusts the 
amounts in the summary table above to compensate for relative declines or increases in the new policy 
year allotments for the NLWIB and SLWIB.  
 
 
Agricultural Outreach Plan Updates 
 
DETR also wishes to update the current portions of the State Plan regarding Agricultural Outreach by 
replacing the current verbiage with the following: 
 
Wagner-Peyser Agricultural Outreach: Each state workforce agency shall operate an 
outreach program in order to locate and to contact migrant and seasonal farmworkers 
(MSFWs) who are not being reached by the normal intake activities conducted by the local 
offices. To this end, each state agency must include in its State Operational Plan an annual 
agricultural outreach plan, setting forth numerical goals, policies, and objectives. Regulations 
at 20 CFR 653.107 require that the outreach plan include the following elements:  

• Assessment of need  
• Proposed outreach activities  
• Services provided to agricultural employers and MSFWs through the One-Stop 

delivery system  
• Numerical goals  
• Data analysis  

 
 

3 
 



I. Assessment of Need 

 

A. Nevada’s Agriculture Industry Sector is a contributor to the overall economy of the 
state.  In addition, Nevada’s ranches rank third in the nation in size, averaging 3,500 
acres. The following are the major agriculture activities relevant to the state:  Range 
livestock production of cattle and calves which is the current leading agricultural 
industry. Then livestock of sheep, lambs and dairy; dairy production is mostly conducted 
in the southern part of Nevada. Crop growth follows with alfalfa hay being the dominant 
cash crop. Other crops produced in Nevada include potatoes, barley, winter and spring 
wheat, corn, oats, onions, garlic and honey.    

 

B. MSFW client registries continue to be low in the state of Nevada. There were eight (8) 
MSFW recipients registered in Program Year 2012 (PY12) with two (2) indicating a 
desire to continue work in the agricultural sector. Although both MSFW individuals 
were referred to agricultural jobs neither followed through with the job referral. Despite 
the increase in agriculture activities in Nevada MSFWs coming into the state seek 
employment in other industries such as the leisure and hospitality sector.   The majority 
of job orders in Nevada are related to the H-2A temporary work visa program, which 
provides the bulk of the temporary agricultural labor force within the State of Nevada.   

 
 

C. During PY12 employers opened 52 agricultural job orders with 1,927 openings.  There 
were 43 referrals (less than 1%) and no job placements.  As mentioned previously the 
two (2) out of the six (6) MSFW clients registered in PY12 showed an interest 
continuing work in the agricultural sector but also showed interest in other types of 
employment.  This continues to be the trend of MSFW clients transitioning to 
employment in other industries favoring jobs in other fields.  

 

D. Historically Nevada has registered a low number of MSFW clients.  It is anticipated the 
level of agricultural activity will remain the same or decrease seeing that MSFW clients 
are interested in pursuing other job opportunities. According to the Quarterly Census of 
Employment and Wages Program Fourth Quarter 2012 Review issued June 2013, 
Nevada experienced employment loss in the agriculture sector, at 2,280 in the fourth 
quarter of 2011 which decreased to 2,197 in the fourth Quarter of 2012 a total loss of 83 
jobs, a decrease of 3.6 percent. In addition, the article indicated the retail trade gained 
the most jobs year-over-year, increasing by 3,246 jobs resulting in a 2.4 percent growth 
rate.  Collected data and research has demonstrated agriculture employment is subsided 
therefore MSFW activity is not expected to increase.        

 
 

 

4 
 



II. Proposed Outreach Activities  

 

The State Monitor Advocate (SMA) in Nevada is a part-time funded position under the 
Employment Service Grant.  The SMA is located in Carson City, Nevada.  Working in 
Northern Nevada allows better access to the agricultural areas of the state given that most 
of the jobs are located in the Northern part.    Additionally, the SMA is a Spanish 
language speaker improving communications with the MSFW community.  For PY14, 
the SMA is forecasting coming into contact with a minimum of ten (10) MSFW 
clients.   In order to identify MSFW clientele timely and accurately, the SMA is currently 
reviewing outreach procedures to incorporate into Nevada JobConnect (NJC) training to 
better serve eligible MSFW clients with equitable and quality services.  In addition, the 
SMA will continue to reach out to community partners and agencies where MSFW 
individuals or groups may congregate.  Pamphlets and a poster will be distributed in 
English and Spanish to help direct individuals to services offered to MSFW clients.   NJC 
staff will continue to work hand-in-hand with agricultural workers providing the full 
range of services at all the NJC offices in the urban and rural locations. 

 
III. Assessment of Available Resources   

 

A. Agricultural activity is not predominant in Nevada compared to other states.  The number 
of registered MSFW clients does not justify assigning more than one (1) individual to 
conduct outreach more than part-time.  However, NCJ staff will be trained to accurately 
identity MSFW clients to provide equitable services and provide direction to other 
resources available.  
 

B.  According to 20 CFR 653.107(h)(3)(i), the five (5) states with the highest estimated 
year-round MSFW activity shall assign, in accordance with the state merit staff 
requirements, full-time, year-round staff to outreach duties.  Nevada does not fall into this 
category; historical trends have resulted in low MSFW activity.  Having said that, there 
has not been a need to increase outreach staff to provide aid to the MSFW 
population.  The SMA currently conducting outreach is bilingual to assure better 
communication and understanding.     
 

C. Currently MSFW clients can go into any of the ten (10) NJC centers located statewide 
and get prompt attention in providing a full range of job services, such as: vocational 
counseling, job referrals, testing and other job development services.  The SMA has 
created bilingual brochures and a poster explaining the purpose and intent of the MSFW 
program, along with an explanation of Employment Security Division (ESD) services 
with contact and location information for all NJC centers.  These brochures and poster 
have been placed with various organizations across Nevada for distribution in the past 
and will continue to be a means of outreaching to MSFW clients.  Nevada will work on 
increasing contact with the MSFW population by networking and mirror other state 
outreach activities.  
 

5 
 



III. Services Provided to MSFWs and Employers through the Nevada JobConnect System   
 

A. Services to MSFW Clients:  The SMA will work with state and federal agencies, and 
private employers to accurately identify the MSFW population and encourage 
participation in the Nevada JobConnect system.  Services include referrals to jobs, staff 
assistance, referrals to supportive services, career guidance and job placement.   

 

      B.  Employer Services:  Availability of agricultural workers is insufficient to meet the needs 
of agricultural employers, which results in increased reliance on the Foreign Labor 
Certification H-2A program.  H-2A application job orders are listed by industry category; 
NJC centers are able to provide information on job opportunities available to the MSFW 
community through the H-2A program.   

 

V. Data Analysis (Data Extracted from NJCOS records) 
 
1.   Previous Year’s History (PY 2012:  July 1, 2012 – June 30, 2013) 

      Number of Agricultural Openings Received:                                  1,927 

Number of Agricultural Openings Filled:                                        0 

Percent Filled:                                                                                  0 

       

2.   Plan for Upcoming Year (PY 2014:  July 1, 2014 – June 30, 2015) 

 

      Number of Agricultural Openings Received:                                   1,950 

Number of Agricultural Openings Filled:                                             19 

Percent Filled:                                                                                   1.00% 

Interstate clearance orders:                        75            

Initiated Interstate clearance orders:                                                     10  

 

 

6 
 



VI. Other Requirements

A. The State Monitor Advocate (SMA) of Nevada has been given the opportunity to 
develop the Agricultural Outreach Plan for PY14.  Data used in this plan has been 
obtained from Nevada JobConnect Operating System (NJCOS), Northern Nevada 
Development Authority and Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages Program, 
which reflects Nevada’s agricultural activity. In addition, the SMA looks forward to 
putting into practice strategies put forth in the Agricultural Outreach Plan for PY14 to 
reach out to MSFW who are not being reached by the normal intake activities. 

B. This Plan was sent electronically to Nevada 167 grantee, Mountain Plains Agricultural 
Services, Western Range Association and Snake River Farmers Association.  In hand, 
the associations sent the plan to all employers they support in Nevada.   

Notification and Approvals 

These proposed changes to Nevada’s State Plan were publicly noticed for comment on DETR’s website 
for 30 days starting September 1 through September 30, 2014.  No comments were revieved.

These changes were also distributed to the State’s LWIBs for comment. Comments were received and 
are attached.

The Governors Workforce Investment Board reviewed and (approved/disapproved) these changes to 
the State Plan at their October 23, 2014 meeting. 

7 

ghnielson
Typewritten Text

ghnielson
Typewritten Text

ghnielson
Typewritten Text

ghnielson
Typewritten Text



ghnielson
Typewritten Text

ghnielson
Typewritten Text
Public Comment Attachment

ghnielson
Typewritten Text

ghnielson
Typewritten Text

ghnielson
Typewritten Text

ghnielson
Typewritten Text

ghnielson
Typewritten Text

ghnielson
Typewritten Text

ghnielson
Typewritten Text

ghnielson
Typewritten Text

ghnielson
Typewritten Text

ghnielson
Typewritten Text







 
 
 
 
 
 
September 23, 2014 
 
 
To: Governors Workforce Investment Board 
 
From: Grant Nielson, ESD Program Chief, WISS 
 
Re: Background Information for State Compliance Policy Updates (3.1, 5.7, 1.12) 
 
An application dated April 3, 2012 was submitted to Workforce Connections (WC) by 
Nevada State College (NSC) for inclusion of Medical ESL for Nursing/Nursing 490 on 
the Eligible Training Provider List (ETPL). WC Board approved the application as did 
the designated State agency Department of Employment Training and Rehabilitation 
(DETR) as written. From June 25, 2012 to July 20, 2012, six Workforce Investment Act 
(WIA) participants from WC funded provider, Nevada Hospital Association, took the 
course. On July 24, 2012 during the public comment period of WC’s Board meeting, an 
attendee objected in substance to the use of WIA funds to pay for training being taught in 
Mexico through the University of Guadalajara. On August 28, 2012 the WC Board voted 
to disallow only those costs associated with air travel and student stipends. The training 
program was subsequently removed from the ETPL due to the fact that the application 
did not indicate the course would be taught in Guadalajara Mexico rather than NSC. In 
February and again in May of 2013, DETR received technical assistance from 
Department of Labor (DOL) and on March 18, 2013, DETR disallowed the entire cost 
associated with the Medical ESL for Nursing/Nursing 490 program. WC appealed this 
decision. 
 
Title 20 CFR Section 667.410 (a) Roles and responsibilities for all recipients and sub-
recipients of funds under the (WIA) Title I in general. Each recipient and sub-recipient 
must conduct regular oversight and monitoring of its WIA activities and those of its sub-
recipients and contractors in order to: (1) Determine that expenditures have been made 
against the cost categories and within the cost limitations specified in the Act and the 
regulations in this part; (2) Determine whether or not there is compliance with other 
provisions of the Act and the WIA regulations and other applicable laws and regulations; 
and (3) Provide technical assistance as necessary and appropriate.  
 
WIA, much like the Constitution of The United States, was written, in part, with room for 
interpretation and the ability to further clarify within individual state law. DOL issues 
changes, updates or clarifications in Advisories and Memorandums to the existing 
legislation and or regulations, through Employment & Training Administration (ETA) 

BRIAN SANDOVAL  
Governor  

 
DENNIS PEREA 
 Interim Director 

 
RENEE L. OLSON 

Administrator 

  
EMPLOYMENT SECURITY 

DIVISION 
 

Workforce Investment  
Support Services 

 

500 East Third Street  Carson City, Nevada 89713     (775) 684-0301   Fax (775) 684-0327 
2800 E. St. Louis Avenue  Las Vegas, Nevada 89104    (702) 486-6632  Fax (702) 486-6633 

www.nvdetr.org 
 

kknelson
Highlight

kknelson
Highlight

kknelson
Sticky Note
AGENDA ITEM VII.(f) - STATE COMPLIANCE POLICY 5.7 PULLED.



Page 2 of 3 
September 2014 
Background Information for State Compliance Policy Updates (3.1, 5.7, 1.12) 
 
Advisories. Communications from ETA come in the forms of Training Employment 
Notice (TEN), Training & Employment Guidance Letters (TEGL) and Training & 
Employment Information Notice (TEIN). DETR provides State Compliance Policy, 
issues technical assistance as needed and when requested, issues DOL’s Advisories and 
Memorandums via email, and performs on-site subrecipient monitoring, all to ensure that 
resources are used efficiently and effectively and are protected from waste, fraud, and 
abuse. (20 CFR 667.500, TEGL 2-12) Subrecipient Monitoring provides an effective 
system of oversight and monitoring of Boards and grantees. This system exists to ensure 
accountability and appropriate use of federal and state funds administered by Department 
of Labor for workforce development services.  
 
The need for updates to Nevada State Compliance Policy result, as interpreted, through 
DOL Advisories and Memorandums, through technical assistance requests from the 
Local Workforce Investment Board’s (LWIBs) and from program monitoring findings of 
sub-recipients when determined clarification is in order.  
 
A hearing was held on August 8, 2013 before an independent Hearing Officer at 
Workforce Connections request, through the appeals process, after having received, from 
DETR, for remittance of what was interpreted to be disallowed costs associated with the 
Act and the Nursing 490 class. The Hearings Officer concluded that there are no specific 
State or Federal policies or regulations that prohibit the use of WIA funds by Workforce 
Connections and/or NSC in connection with the training course, Nursing 490. WIA funds 
may not be used for foreign travel, but no policy, law or regulation expressly prohibits 
the use of WIA funds for training in a foreign country.   
 
On two occasions, March 17, 2010 and again of February 26, 2013 DETR received 
requested technical assistance from the Department of Labor (DOL) as to the allowability 
and appropriateness of WIA participant occupational training held outside the United 
States.  Each time DOL cited existing law, rules or regulation, none specific to foreign 
training; “WIA Sec.181(2) (e) and 20 CFR 667.264 using WIA funds to attend 
conferences outside of the country is also prohibited- it seems logical that training outside 
of the country would follow the same decision path” and “ Appendix A, Part 225 (c) in 
considering the reasonable, allowable, and allocable use of federal funds, one would want 
to determine whether it is reasonable to spend this amount of money when similar 
courses could be offered closer to home. Sec. 122 Eligible Training Providers; Nevada 
State College is an approved provider; the University of Guadalajara is not. [And finally], 
20CFR 667.220, 400 and 410; 29 CFR 95 and 97; and WIA Sec. 112 (b) (1) and 136 as to 
grant oversight and performance accountability. Consideration should be given as to how 
[entities] would fulfill their required responsibilities of accountability, oversight, 
including program costs and supportive services, etc.” Additionally, DETR had concerns 
as to the ability to ensure that the provisions of the Equal Employment Opportunity Act 
(EEO), the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), privacy and safety concerns of 
participants were addressed effectively while participants were located outside the United 
States. 

 
500 East Third Street  Carson City, Nevada 89713     (775) 684-0301   Fax (775) 684-0327 

2800 E. St. Louis Avenue  Las Vegas, Nevada 89104    (702) 486-6632  Fax (702) 486-6633 
www.nvdetr.org 



Page 3 of 3 
September 2014 
Background Information for State Compliance Policy Updates (3.1, 5.7, 1.12) 
 
Nevada looks for every opportunity to strengthen its stewardship of public funds, 
enhance the LWIB’s flexibility to provide innovative services, and improve program 
integrity yet holds them accountable for performance in the programs for which they 
receive funds. In an effort to allow for such, DETR has determined that adding the 
requirements of …The LWIB when deemed necessary by the state, must arrange and pay 
for, with non WIA funds, on site monitoring of foreign approved training sites … to 
specific State Compliance Policies is in order. 

 
500 East Third Street  Carson City, Nevada 89713     (775) 684-0301   Fax (775) 684-0327 

2800 E. St. Louis Avenue  Las Vegas, Nevada 89104    (702) 486-6632  Fax (702) 486-6633 
www.nvdetr.org 



 
 Workforce Investment Act 
 State Compliance Policies 
 
SECTION:  1.12  Selection of Training Service Providers  August 2005 
 

 
I. Introduction: 
 

The workforce investment system established under WIA emphasizes informed customer 
choice, system performance, and continuous improvement.  In order to maximize customer 
choice and assure that all significant population groups are served, the State Governor’s 
Workforce Investment Board (SGWIB) and Local Workforce Investment Boards (LWIBs) 
should administer an eligible provider process in a manner to assure that significant numbers 
of competent providers, offering a wide variety of training programs and occupational 
choices, are available to customers (§663.500 and WIA State Compliance Policy 1.9). 
 

II.   Eligible Providers Of Training Services (§663.505, WIA Section 122): 
 

A. Eligible providers of training services are those entities eligible to receive 
Workforce Investment Act Title I-B funds to provide training services to adult and 
dislocated workers.  LWIBs, in partnership with the state, identify qualified training 
providers.  

 
B. In order to provide training services to eligible adults and dislocated workers, a 

provider must be approved to be on the Eligible Training Provider List (ETPL) and 
meet one or more of the following criteria: 

 
1. Accredited by the Northwest Accreditation Commission to provide training in the 

careers or certification programs identified as being viable within one of the 
designated industry sectors; or 

2. A postsecondary educational institution that is eligible to receive federal funds 
under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 1070 et seq.) and 
provides a program that leads to an associate degree, baccalaureate degree, or 
certificate [WIA Section 122(a)(2)(A)(ii)]; or 

3. An Eligible Training Provider certified by the Department of Employment 
Training & Rehabilitation (DETR); or 

4. An entity that carries out programs under the National Apprenticeship Act (50 
Stat. 664; 29 U.S.C. 50 et seq.); or 

5. A community-based organization; or 
6. Other public or private providers of a program of training services; or 
7. LWIBs, if they meet the conditions of WIA State Compliance Policy 1.3 [Section 

117(f)(1)(B)]; or 

DETR/ESD/Workforce Investment Support Services 
WIA State Compliance Policies 
Section 1.12 – Selection of Training Service Providers 
Revised June 2014 September 2014        Page 1 of 6 



8. Community-based organizations and other private organizations approved by the 
LWIB to provide training to special participant populations that face multiple 
barriers to employment, per WIA State Compliance Policy 1.3 (§663.590). 

 
C.   Training providers must provide a program of training services through one (1) or 

more courses or classes that, upon successful completion, leads to  (§663.508): 
 

1. A certificate, an associate degree, or baccalaureate degree; or 
2. A competency or skill recognized by employers, or a training regimen that 

provides individuals with additional skills or competencies generally recognized 
by employers. 

 
D.  A provider of training services providing services other than basic/life skills training 

must, as appropriate: 
 

1. Be licensed by the Nevada State Commission on Post Secondary Education as 
required in Nevada Revised Statutes 394.099 and 394.415; or 

2. Be licensed by the appropriate licensing agency (e.g., trucking training, 
cosmetology, aviation training, etc.), as required. 

 
III.  Initial Eligibility Determination [§663.515, Section 122(b)]: 
 

A. Postsecondary Institutions (title IV of the Higher Education Act) and Apprenticeship 
Programs (National Apprenticeship Act): 

 
1. To be initially eligible to receive adult or dislocated worker training funds, a 

postsecondary educational institution and an entity carrying out apprenticeship 
program training meeting the definition of section I(B)(2 and 4) above must 
submit an application to the LWIB for the local area in which the provider desires 
to provide training services.  

2. This application must describe each program of training services the provider will 
be offering to eligible adults and dislocated workers and include any other 
information required by LWIBs [§663.515(a)]. 

3. LWIBs shall determine the procedures for making an application for initial 
eligibility for those entities that will specify the timing, manner, and contents of 
the required application  [§663.515(b)]. 

 
B.  Other Providers: 

 
For entities other than those described in section IIIA above, providers of training 
services must submit the following information to the LWIBs for the purpose of 
evaluating initial eligibility requirements [§663.515(c), WIA Section 122(b)(2)]: 

DETR/ESD/Workforce Investment Support Services 
WIA State Compliance Policies 
Section 1.12 – Selection of Training Service Providers 
Revised June 2014 September 2014        Page 2 of 6 



• Organization name, address, telephone and fax number; 
• Name and title of contact person; 
• Organization’s federal tax identification number; 
• Type of organization (i.e., private for-profit, private non-profit, public non-profit, 

government agency, university, school district, community college, post-
secondary educational institution, minority-owned business, or female-owned 
business); 

• A description of the types of training services for which the agency is applying; 
• Method of documenting student attendance; 
• Documentation of approval by the Nevada State Commission on Postsecondary 

Education or appropriate licensing entity; 
• Program information including: 

o The program completion rates for all individuals participating in the 
applicable program conducted by the provider; 

o The percentage of all individuals participating in the applicable program who 
obtain unsubsidized employment; 

o The wages at placement in employment of all individuals participating in the 
applicable program; 

o The percentage of WIA participants in each training program who obtain 
unsubsidized employment; 

o The retention rates in unsubsidized employment of participants who have 
completed the applicable program, six (6) months after the first day of the 
employment; 

o The wages received by participants who have completed the applicable 
program six (6) months after the first day of employment; 

o Where appropriate, the rates of licensure or certification, attainment of 
academic degrees or equivalents, or attainment of other measures of skills of 
the graduates of the applicable program;   

o Information on program costs of the applicable training program (tuition and 
fees); and 

o Other information required by the LWIB. 
 
IV.  Subsequent Eligibility Determination: 
 

A. Training providers shall annually provide verifiable performance information for all 
adults and dislocated workers whose training is funded in whole or in part under Title 
I of WIA.  Providers that have been determined eligible for more than six (6) months 
shall submit the following performance information annually to the appropriate 
LWIB and in a manner determined by that Board [§§663.530 and 663.540(a)(1-2), 
WIA Section 122(d)(1)]: 
Program information: 
 

DETR/ESD/Workforce Investment Support Services 
WIA State Compliance Policies 
Section 1.12 – Selection of Training Service Providers 
Revised June 2014 September 2014        Page 3 of 6 



• The average program completion rates for all individuals participating in the 
applicable program conducted by the provider; 

• The percentage of all individuals participating in the applicable program who 
obtain unsubsidized employment; 

• The wages at placement in employment of all individuals participating in the 
applicable program; 

• The percentage of WIA participants in each training program who obtain 
unsubsidized employment; 

• The retention rates in unsubsidized employment of participants who have 
completed the applicable program, six (6) months after the first day of 
employment; 

• The wages received by participants who have completed the applicable program 
six (6) months after the first day of the employment involved using UI quarterly 
wage records, where appropriate;  

• Where appropriate, the rates of licensure or certification, attainment of academic 
degrees or equivalents, or attainment of other measurable skills of the graduates 
of the program; 

• Information on program costs of the applicable training program; and 
• Other performance information required by the LWIB.   

 
Note:  If the Governor or LWIB requests additional information on program 
specific information that imposes extraordinary collection costs, training 
providers must be provided access to a cost-effective method of collecting the 
information or be provided additional funds from state or local WIA funds, as 
appropriate [WIA Section 122(d)(3)(A)]. 
 
The Governor must establish procedures by which providers can demonstrate if 
the additional information required imposes extraordinary costs on providers or 
if providers experience extraordinary costs in the collection of information 
[§663.540(c)]. 

 
Note:  LWIBs may accept program-specific performance information consistent 
with the requirements for eligibility under Title IV of the Higher Education Act 
of 1965 if the information is substantially similar to the information required in 
section IV.A above [§663.540(d)]. 

 
B. In making determinations of whether to retain providers, LWIBs must, in addition to 

the requirements in IV.A above, take into consideration  [§663.535(f)]: 
 

1. The specific economic, geographic, and demographic factors in the local areas in 
which providers seeking eligibility are located; and 

DETR/ESD/Workforce Investment Support Services 
WIA State Compliance Policies 
Section 1.12 – Selection of Training Service Providers 
Revised June 2014 September 2014        Page 4 of 6 



2. The characteristics of the populations served by providers seeking eligibility, 
including the demonstrated difficulties in serving such populations, as applicable. 

 
C. LWIBs must remove a training service provider, as appropriate, from the local list 

who [§663.565(b)(1)]: 
 

1. Failed to meet the performance standards established by the SGWIB and LWIBs 
for each performance criteria [§663.535(g)]; or 

2. Failed to provide the required performance information [§663.565(a)]; or 
3. Intentionally supplied inaccurate information [§663.565(3)]; or 
4. Violated any provision of Title I of the Workforce Investment Act including 29 

CFR Part 37 [§663.565(b)(3), Section 122(f)]. 
 

Note:  If all of the provider’s programs are determined to have failed to meet the 
levels, the designated state agency may remove the provider from the state list 
[§663.565(b)(2)]. 
 

D. LWIBs will submit performance and cost information, as well as determinations 
of provider retention, to the lead state agency within forty-five (45) days from 
the date that the information is due from providers.  If the lead state agency 
determines, within thirty (30) days from the receipt of information, that the 
provider does not meet the established state performance levels for the program 
of training services or is in non-compliance with Section IV.C. above, the lead 
state agency will recommend removal of the provider from the list of training 
providers as appropriate [§663.535(g)]. 

 
E. A provider who is placed or retained on the list and is not recommended for removal 

by the designated state agency, shall be considered to be an eligible provider of 
training services [§663.535(g)]. 
 

F. Refer to WIA State Compliance Policy 4.4, - Non-Criminal Grievance Complaint and 
Hearing Procedures [§667.640(b)]. 

 
V.    State Submission/Approval Process: 

 
A. LWIBs shall post public notice of requests for qualifications, annually at a 

minimum, for potential new providers. 
 

B. LWIBs will review applications and forward all new applications and Board 
recommendations to the lead state agency for verification of application information.  

 
C. Should a LWIB find it necessary to use a training 

DETR/ESD/Workforce Investment Support Services 
WIA State Compliance Policies 
Section 1.12 – Selection of Training Service Providers 
Revised June 2014 September 2014        Page 5 of 6 



provider located outside the Continental United States 
and its territories, the WIB will pay for with non WIA 
funds, on site monitoring costs, including travel, for 
both LWIB and State monitors. 
                                          

D. After the lead state agency verifies that the provider meets the criteria for initial or 
subsequent eligibility, or after thirty (30) days have elapsed, whichever occurs first, 
the provider is eligible as a provider of training services.  
 
Note:  The providers submitted under section III A. 1-3 are initially eligible without 
state agency review [§663.515(d)].   

 
E. If a provider is denied eligibility status, they may appeal using procedures set forth in 

WIA State Compliance Policy 4.4 [§667.640(b)]. 
 
F. The lead state agency will maintain the eligible provider list by publishing and 

disseminating any updates to the list within thirty (30) days of a determination 
effecting provider eligibility or updates to training provider performance and data 
[§663.510(c)]. 

 
VI. Exceptions:  On-The-Job Training (OJT) Or Customized Training  [§663.595]: 
 

A. On-the-job and customized training providers are not subject to the reporting and 
eligibility requirements of this policy.   

 
B. For on-the-job and customized training providers, a One-Stop operator or One- Stop 

consortium in a local area shall: 
 

1. Collect required performance information for each provider to include: 
• Rate of successful completion of OJT/customized training activities; 
• Average wage of OJT/customized training recipients; 
• 6-month employment retention rates of OJT/customized training recipients;  

2. Determine whether the providers meet such performance criteria; and 
3. Disseminate information identifying providers that meet the criteria as eligible 

providers, and the performance information, through the One-Stop delivery 
system. 

 
C. On-the-job and customized training providers determined to meet the criteria shall 

be considered to be eligible providers of training services. 

DETR/ESD/Workforce Investment Support Services 
WIA State Compliance Policies 
Section 1.12 – Selection of Training Service Providers 
Revised June 2014 September 2014        Page 6 of 6 



 GOVERNOR’S WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 WIA - STATE COMPLIANCE POLICIES 
 
 SUMMARY OF POLICY REVISIONS/ADDITIONS 
 
 
I. WIA State Compliance Policy #:   1.12                  Title:  Selection of Training Service Providers                                                                 
 
II. Supporting documentation for revision(s): 
 

� Federal  Document:                                   Effective date:                         
� State  Document:                                   Effective date:                         

 
Date received:                                                   

 
III.  Summary of Changes:  DETR was overturned at an Administrative Hearing on September 06, 

2013 regarding denial of out of country training.  The Hearing Officer indicated that the training 
out of country is not prohibited, but the travel to attend and monitor the training is and it was not 
clear in DETR’s policies that this was not an allowable activity.  Therefore all policies related to 
training out of country have been updated.  It is now indicated if the Local Board determines that 
the training is appropriate, the Board is responsible for the cost of the Board and State staff to 
travel to monitor the training provider at their location. 

 
 
IV.   Staff recommendations:  Staff recommends approval of State Compliance Policy as written. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Presented to: Governor’s Workforce Investment 
Board  
On this meeting date:                                                 
Result(s):                                                                      

�  Approved by board   
                � Approved w/ correction 

� Requested additional information 
 

 
WIA/SRA01 – September 2014 



 
 
                                                       Workforce Investment Act 
                                                        State Compliance Policies 
 
SECTION: 3.1 Allowable Costs  July  2005  
 
I. Allowable Costs: 
(NOTE:  paragraph below originally was 2nd paragraph down…. The II Unallowable Costs information in June 2014 was 
first, we have added the II. to separate the pieces of information) 

In addition to aAllowable costs defined in WIA regulations, grantees must abide by general 
cost restrictions as defined in the following: 

• 2 CFR Part 225 - Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian 
Governments 

• 2 CFR Part 230 - Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations 
• 2 CFR Parts 215 & 220 - Cost Principles for Educational Institutions 
• Department of Employment, Training, and Rehabilitation Policies 
• USDOL Technical Assistance Guides (TAGs) 
• Training Employment Information Notice (TEIN) 
• Training and Employment Guidance Letters (TEGLs) 

II. Unallowable Costs: 
A. Unallowable WIA costs are described in §667.220, §667.260, §667.262, §667.264, 

§667.266, and §667.268, including: 
1. Public service employment, except to provide disaster relief employment as 

specifically authorized in section 173(d) of WIA [20 CFR §667.264(2)]. 
2. Relocation of a business or part of a business that results in the loss of 

employment at the original location [§667.268(a)(1)]. 
3. Employment generating and similar activities if not related to training for eligible 

individuals [§667.262(a)]. 
4. Sectarian activities [§667.266(a)]. 
5. Foreign travel [§667.264(b)]. 
5.6. The LWIB will pay for the non WIA funds, on site monitoring 

costs, including travel, for both LWID and state monitoring, for 
training services located outside the Continental United States 
and its territories. 

6.7.Political activities [WIA Section 195(6)]. 
7.8.Duplication of facilities/services available in the area [§663.320(a)(b)]. 
8.9.Wages of incumbent employees during participation in economic development 

activities [§667.264(a)(1)]. 
9.10. The promotion or deterrence of union organizing. [WIA 181(b)(7)] 

 
The following chart is provided as a reference for specific costs.  The narrative 
portion of the chart is intended to provide initial guidance; please refer to the 
citations for further information.  Failure to mention a particular item of cost in the 
standards is not intended to imply that it is either allowable or unallowable; rather, 
the determination of allowability in each case should be based on the treatment of 
standards provided for similar or related items of cost.   

Formatted: Font: (Default) Courier New, 10 pt,
Highlight

DETR/ESD/Workforce Investment Support Services  
WIA State Compliance Policies  
Section 3.1 – Allowable Costs 
Revised June 2014  September 2014          Page 1 of 5  



Summary of Cost Items 

KEY 
 
NT = Not treated in referenced Cost Principle 
A = Allowable 
AC        =   Allowable with conditions 
AP = Allowable with prior approval of either the Grant Officer or Governor 
U = Unallowable 
A/U        =   Some categories within the particular activity are allowable, while some are not. 

Please consult respective circular for precise explanations. 
 
Note: Some of the costs on this chart are allowable under the circulars and prohibited under WIA 
or other program-specific regulations. You should refer to the program-specific regulations if you 
have any questions on allowability of a particular cost. This chart is for reference only. 
 

In addition, when reviewing the provisions related to selected items of cost in the cost 
principles, the cost principles applied in establishing the allowability of certain items of cost 
apply whether the cost is treated as a direct or indirect cost. Failure to address a particular item of 
cost is not intended to imply that it is unallowable. Rather, the determination of allowability in each 
case should be based on the treatment or principles provided for similar or related costs. Note also 
that, in some instances, different cost items may be similarly named, and there may be some overlap 
in the cost items treated by the different circulars. Again, this chart is for reference only. 
  
 

Cost Item 
2 CFR 
Part 220 

2 CFR 
Part 230 

2 CFR 
Part 225 

48 CFR Part 
31 

     
Advertising and public 
relations 
costs 

 
AC/U 

 
AC/U 

 
AC/U 

 
AC 

Advisory councils A A A NT 
Alcoholic beverages U U U U 

Alumni/ae activities U NT NT NT 

Asset valuations resulting 
from business combinations 

 
NT 

 
NT 

 
NT 

 
A 

Audit costs and related 
services A A A NT 

Bad debts U U U U 
Bonding costs NT A A NT 
Commencement 
and convocation 

 
U 

 
NT 

 
NT 

 
NT 

 
DETR/ESD/Workforce Investment Support Services  
WIA State Compliance Policies  
Section 3.1 – Allowable Costs 
Revised June 2014  September 2014          Page 2 of 5  

http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%231%231
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%231%231
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%231%231
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%232%232
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%233%233
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%234%234
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%234%234
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%235%235
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%236%236


  

 
 

Cost Item 
2 CFR 
Part 220 

2 CFR 
Part 230 

2 CFR 
Part 225 

48 CFR Part 
31 

     
Communication costs A A A NT 
Compensation for personal 
services 

 
A/U 

 
A/U 

 
AC/U 

 
A/U 

Contingency provisions U U U U 
Cost of money U U U AC 
Deans of Faculty and 
graduate schools 

 
A 

 
NT 

 
NT 

 
NT 

Defense and prosecution of 
criminal and civil 
proceedings, and claims 

 
AC/U 

 
AC/U 

 
A/U 

 
U 

Deferred Research and 
development costs 

 
NT 

 
NT 

 
NT 

 
AC/U 

Depreciation and use 
allowances AC AC AC AC 
Donations and contributions U U U U 
Economic planning costs NT NT NT NT/U 
Employee morale, health, 
and welfare costs 

 
A 

 
A 

 
A 

 
U 

Entertainment costs U U U U 
Equipment and other capital 
expenditures 

 
AP/U 

 
AP/U 

 
AP/U 

 
AP 

Fines and penalties U/AP U/AP U/AP U 
Fund raising and investment 
management costs 

 
U/A 

 
U 

 
U 

 
U 

Gains and losses on 
disposition of depreciable 
property and other capital 
assets and substantial 
relocation of Federal 
programs 

 
 
 

AC 

 
 
 

AC 

 
 
 

AC 

 
 
 

A 

General government 
expenses NT NT U NT 
Goods or services for 
personal use 

 
U 

 
U 

 
U 

 
NT 

Goodwill NT NT NT U 
Housing and Personal Living 
Expenses 

 
U 

 
AP/U 

 
NT 

 
NT 

Idle facilities and idle 
capacity AC/U AC/U AC/U AC/U 
Insurance and 
indemnification AC/U AC/U AC/U A 

DETR/ESD/Workforce Investment Support Services  
WIA State Compliance Policies  
Section 3.1 – Allowable Costs 
Revised June 2014  September 2014          Page 3 of 5  

http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%237%237
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%238%238
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%238%238
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%239%239
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2310%2310
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2310%2310
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2310%2310
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2310%2310
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2311%2311
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2311%2311
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2312%2312
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2313%2313
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2313%2313
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2313%2313
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2314%2314
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2315%2315
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2315%2315
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2316%2316
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2317%2317
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2317%2317
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2318%2318
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2318%2318
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2318%2318
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2318%2318
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2318%2318
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2318%2318
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2318%2318
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2318%2318
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2318%2318
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2319%2319
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2319%2319
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2320%2320
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2320%2320
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2320%2320
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2321%2321
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2321%2321
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2322%2322
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2322%2322


  
 

Cost Item 
2 CFR 
Part 220 

2 CFR 
Part 230 

2 CFR 
Part 225 

48 CFR Part 
31 

     
Interest A/AC/U A/AC/U A/AC/U U 
Labor Relations Costs A A NT AC 
Lobbying U U U U 
Losses on other sponsored 
agreements or contracts 

 
U 

 
U 

 
U 

 
U 

Maintenance, operations, 
and repairs 

 
A 

 
A 

 
AC 

 
A 

Materials and supplies costs A A A A 
Meetings and conferences A A A See Item 2 
Memberships, subscriptions, 
and professional activity 
costs 

 
A/U 

 
A/AP/U 

 
A/AP/U 

 
NT 

Organization costs NT U/AP NT U 
Other business expenses NT NT NT A 
Page charges in professional 
journals 

 
NT 

 
A 

 
NT 

 
NT 

Participant support costs NT AP NT NT 
Patent costs A/U A/U A/U A/U 
Plant and homeland security 
costs 

 
A 

 
A 

 
A 

 
A 

Pre-award costs U/AP AC/AP AC/AP NT 
Professional service costs A A A A 
Proposal costs A NT A AP 
Publication and printing 
costs A A A NT 

Rearrangement and 
alteration costs 

 
A 

 
A 

 
A 

 
NT 

Reconversion costs A A A NT 
Recruiting costs A A A A 
Relocation costs NT AC NT A/U 
Rental costs of building and 
equipment 

 
AC 

 
AC 

 
AC 

 
AC 

Royalties and other costs for 
the use of patents 

 
A 

 
A 

 
A 

 
A 

Scholarships and student aid A NT NT NT 
Selling and marketing AC/U U U A/U 

DETR/ESD/Workforce Investment Support Services  
WIA State Compliance Policies  
Section 3.1 – Allowable Costs 
Revised June 2014  September 2014          Page 4 of 5  

http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%23223%23223
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2324%2324
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2325%2325
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2325%2325
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2325%2325
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2326%2326
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2327%2327
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2328%2328
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2328%2328
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2328%2328
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2328%2328
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2329%2329
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2330%2330
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2330%2330
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2331%2331
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2332%2332
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2333%2333
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2334%2334
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2334%2334
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2335%2335
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2335%2335
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2335%2335
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2336%2336
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2337%2337
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2337%2337
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2338%2338
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2338%2338
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2338%2338
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2339%2339


  
 

Cost Item 
2 CFR 
Part 220 

2 CFR 
Part 230 

2 CFR 
Part 225 

48 CFR Part 
31 

     
Service and warranty costs NT NT NT A 
Special tooling and special 
test equip. 

 
NT 

 
NT 

 
NT 

 
A 

Specialized service facilities AC AC NT NT 
Taxes AC AC AC AC 
Termination costs applicable 
to sponsored agreements 

 
AC 

 
AC 

 
AC 

 
A/U 

Training costs A AC/AP/U A AC 

Transportation costs A A NT AC 
Travel costs AC AC AC AC 
Trustees AC AC NT NT 

 
With limited exceptions, selected items of costs are treated similarly for all recipients of Federal 
awards.  Principal differences in the treatment of costs unique to any one Circular are shown in bold 
within the table above. 
 
 

DETR/ESD/Workforce Investment Support Services  
WIA State Compliance Policies  
Section 3.1 – Allowable Costs 
Revised June 2014  September 2014          Page 5 of 5  

http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2340%2340
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2341%2341
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2341%2341
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2341%2341
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2342%2342
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a87_2004.html%2343%2343


 GOVERNOR’S WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
 WIA - STATE COMPLIANCE POLICIES 
 
 SUMMARY OF POLICY REVISIONS/ADDITIONS 
 
 
I. WIA State Compliance Policy #:   3.1                 Title:  Allowable Costs                                                                 
 
II. Supporting documentation for revision(s): 
 

� Federal  Document:                                   Effective date:                         
� State  Document:                                   Effective date:                         

 
Date received:                                                   

 
III.  Summary of Changes:  DETR was overturned at an Administrative Hearing on September 06, 

2013 regarding denial of out of country training.  The Hearing Officer indicated that the training 
out of country is not prohibited, but the travel to attend and monitor the training is and it was not 
clear in DETR’s policies that this was not an allowable activity.  Therefore all policies related to 
training out of country have been updated.  It is now indicated if the Local Board determines that 
the training is appropriate, the Board is responsible for the cost of the Board and State staff to 
travel to monitor the training provider at their location. 

 
 
IV.   Staff recommendations:  Staff recommends approval of State Compliance Policy as written. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Presented to: Governor’s Workforce Investment 
Board  
On this meeting date:                                                 
Result(s):                                                                      

�  Approved by board   
                � Approved w/ correction 

� Requested additional information 
 

 
WIA/SRA01 – September 2014 


	GWIB_October 23 2014 Meeting Packet
	Meeting Notice and Agenda
	VI.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  July 24, 2014 GWIB Meeting Minutes - DRAFT
	VII.  DISCUSSION, INFORMATION AND POTENTIAL ACTION ITEMS
	a. DETR Agency Reports
	b.  DETR Research and Analysis Bureau (placeholder)
	c.  GWIB Industry Sector Council Reports and Updates
	Aerospace and Defense
	Agriculture
	Clean Energy
	Health Care and Medical Services
	IT
	Logistics and Operations
	Manufacturing
	Mining and Materials
	Tourism Gaming and Entertainment

	d.  Local Workforce Investment Boards (LWIBs)
	Nevadaworks
	Workforce Connections

	e.  WIA Analysis of Expenditures FY15 September 30, 2014
	f.  WIA Performance Measures June 30 2014
	Nevada Integrated Workforce Plan Modification
	Public Comment Response - (FINAL) State Plan Modification (September 30, 2014)

	Background Information SCP Modifications
	Write up for policy 1.12
	SCP SECTION 1.12 Modification Draft
	Write up for policy 3.1
	SCP SECTION 3.1 Modification Draft







